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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Insurance premiums $145589 | $133,497 $107594 $91,292 $ 88682 $86,025 $43373
Investment income 14,317 15,552 12,724 11,499 11,256 11,151 6,566
Other income 1,694 1,287 1,172 366 201 306 -
Realized investment gains, net 1,708 1,922 2,831 2,909 1,076 1,589 1,731
Total revenue 163,308 152,258 124,321 106,066 101,215 99,071 51,670
Insurance benefits and losses incurred 106,896 97,628 78,162 60,845 61,018 54,281 24,689
Other expenses 52,159 49,874 42,237 36,518 32,026 36,975 23,897
Total benefits and expenses 159,055 147,502 120,399 97,363 93,044 91,256 48,586
Income from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes 4,253 4,756 3,922 8,703 8,171 7,815 3,084
Income tax provision (benefit) 656 1,124 (6,988) 145 138 204 (34)
Income from continuing operations 3,597 3,632 10,910 8,558 8,033 7,611 3,118
Loss from discontinued operations, net - - - - (4,447)  (10,094)

8558 $ 8033 $ 3164 $(6,976)

Net income (loss) $ 3597 | $ 3632 $10910 $
Basic net income (loss) per common share:;
Income from continuing operations $ A0 | % 12 ¢ 48 $ 37 $ 3B $ 33 $ 15
Loss from discontinued operations - - - - - (.24) (.54)
Net income (loss) $ A0 | $ 12 $ 48 $ 37 % .35 09 $ (39
Diluted net income (loss) per common share;
Income from continuing operations $ 10 ¢ 12 ¢ 46 $ 37 $ 3B $ 32 $ 15
Loss from discontinued operations - - - - - (.23) (.54)
Net income (loss) $ 10 $ 12 $ 46 08 37 $ 3% $ 09 $ (39
Book value per common share $ 337 ¢$ 318 $ 312 $ 360 $ 327 $ 229 $ 161
Common shares outstanding 21,246 21,157 21,027 19,120 18,907 18,684 $18,679
Total assets $412,019 | $375,777 $351,144  $273131 $271,860 $252,994 $245494
Total long-term debt $ 44,000 | $ 46500 $ 51,000 $ 23600 $ 27,600 $25994 $31569
Total debt $ 44,000 | $ 46500 $ 51000 $ 26,000 $ 28600 $35611 $44,921
Total shareholders’ equity before accumulated
other comprehensive income $ 78778 | $ 76420 $71112 $ 53431 $ 48,685 $41423 $30,889
Total shareholders’ equity after accumulated
other comprehensive income $ 87,526 | $83240 $78948 $ 82217 $ 78,183 $59,136 $46,478
Operating return on beginning equity* 3.3% 3.3% 15.1% 11.6% 16.8% 19.5% 57%
PROPERTY & CASUALTY LIFE & HEALTH 2001
EARNED PREMIUMS EARNED PREMIUMS EARNED PREMIUMS
1.5% 5.3%
L_G-b5_|% Other-Accident Other Supplemental 38.0%
11.6% lability & Health/Surety Health 69.2% Life
Auto Physical 37.1% Medicare & Health 62.0%
Damage Workers' 95,504 Supplement Property
Compensation Life & Casualty

12.3%
Property

31.0%
Auto Liability

*Qperating return on beginning equity is calculated by dividing total shareholders’ equity before accumulated other comprehensive income into net income from continuing
operations less realized gains.




To Our Shareholders:

One of the best things we can say about 2001 is the year is over. Atlantic American
grew and was profitable — a solid achievement in one of the worst years ever
for the insurance industry — but these achievements were overshadowed by the
September 11th tragedy and its consequences. Atlantic American emerged with no
direct financial damage as a result of the terrorist attacks and, in many respects, we
are a stronger company as a result of the changes wrought by the catastrophe. This in
no way, however, minimizes or mitigates the extent of the damage our industry and
nation has suffered as a result of terrorism, the reverberations of which will be felt
for many, many years to come.

For Atlantic American, 2001 witnessed the growth of our consolidated total revenue to
over $163.3 million, an increase of approximately 7% over last year and a new record
for our Company. Premium revenue increased to $145.6 million from $133.5 million,
an increase of 9%. Net income for 2001 was down slightly, coming in at approximately
$3.60 million, compared to $3.63 million in 2000. Diluted earnings per share amounted
to 10 cents compared to 12 cents last year, primarily due to the issuance of new
preferred shares in 2000. Book value per common share rose to $3.37 from $3.18 in
2000, an increase of just under 6%. Total assets grew to a record $412.0 million, up
from $375.8 million. Total debt was reduced by $2.5 million to $44.0 million from
$46.5 million last year and, perhaps most significantly, gross written premiums grew
by 13% to $176.0 million — a sure sign we will report solid growth next year.

Atlantic American’s consolidated balance sheet continues to be strong. The claims
from the World Trade Center attacks left many of our reinsurers with unprecedented
losses. We are happy to report that all of our reinsurers survived, remain solvent, and
are financially strong.\WWe are confident in all our reinsurance receivables and their ulti-
mate collectibility. We expect our reinsurance costs to increase in 2002, but as our
prices have been rising for some time now, we are hopeful that we can mitigate to
some degree the financial impact of these increases.

Our life and health insurance operations continued to report solid results in 2001.
Total revenue increased to $60.2 million from $53.6 million in 2000. Profits were
behind last year, primarily due to medical inflation and a lag in securing the regulatory
approval for necessary rate increases to offset this inflation. All such approvals have
now been received and the required rate increases have been implemented.
Therefore, this issue should not have an impact on our earnings in 2002. Our overall
efficiency in this division is excellent. As a result of changes implemented several years
ago, total revenue per employee exceeds $1.0 million for the first time ever. Gene



Choate and his team have done an outstanding job growing Bankers Fidelity while
keeping expenses in check. With this level of efficiency, necessary rate increases in
place, and continued growth in new sales, we believe that 2002 will be an excellent
year for Bankers Fidelity. On a sad note, the company lost one of its Regional Sales
Directors, Matt Kellogg, in an automabile accident this past year. Matt’s loss was tragic for
his family and for our entire Company. His wife, Kerri, and four children survive him.
Matt’s father, Ron Kellogg, also works for Bankers Fidelity and has been instrumental in the
company’s growth throughout the western United States. Matt’s loss is incalculable for
his family and is felt in equal measure by his business family here at Atlantic American.
He was a joy to be with and will be missed by all of us.

Atlantic American’s regional property and casualty operations is the only division of the
Company that did not report good financial results in 2001. This division, comprised of
Georgia Casualty, Association Casualty, and Association Risk Management General
Agency, has, in common with our industry, seen claim costs escalate over the last several
years. Re-pricing and re-underwriting this business has been necessary as a result.We
believe that we are getting closer to where we need to be in both regards. Current
year loss ratios look good. Development on old years’ claims has been reserved for,
and new reserving practices are in place to account for higher claim costs. All of these
actions are subjective, and we believe our decisions have been conservative. Time will tell,
but we are seeing signs that the right decisions have been made. This division posted
total revenue of $58.2 million, compared to total revenue of $55.3 million last year. This
increase is not fully reflective of either the division’s growth in new business or in its
higher prices, as we elected to cede a larger portion of our business to our reinsurers
over the past year than is our usual practice.\We are pulling back somewhat on this
cession in 2002, so we expect to pick up higher revenue from this division in the first
quarter of 2002 and throughout the year.\We also expect to pick up improved earnings
in 2002. Both Bob Kitchen and Dianne Morris have done an excellent job in positioning
Georgia Casualty and Association Casualty, respectively, for a strong 2002. We are
counting on both of them to make the whole greater than the sum of its parts. If
they are successful, and we are confident they will be, our regional property and
casualty operations will be significant contributors to our entire Company in the
foreseeable future.

Our specialty property and casualty insurance operations, comprised of American
Southern and American Safety Insurance Companies, reported typically strong financial
results in 2001. Solid underwriting, strong agent involvement, generous profit sharing,
variable expenses, and adequate prices are the keys to American Southern’s success.
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.1 don't believe there is a company anywhere in our industry that operates under a
similar strategy, and there are certainly very few that achieve the relative consistency
and strength of American Southern’s earnings. As the overall property and casualty
market has become more difficult and prices have hardened, we are seeing many new
opportunities for profitable growth in this division. Calvin Wall and Scott Thompson
have done an excellent job and should be commended for their steadiness and maturity
of judgment. Their efforts have made American Southern the primary gem in Atlantic
American’s crown.

Once again, SIA, Inc., our third party administrator, led by Andy Thompson has reported
excellent results and strong margins in a very competitive business. We acquired SIA in
1997, and under Andy’s leadership he has consistently kept his expenses in check while
providing his clients top-notch service.

As this letter is being written, it is clear that our longstanding auditor, Arthur
Andersen, is facing a serious threat to its survival. We know of no greater business
tragedy than what has befallen Arthur Andersen.The firm has audited our books since
1974 and has always done an excellent job. The quality of their audit of this year’s
results has been thorough and responsible. As a shareholder, you should feel comfortable
with our financial statements and Arthur Andersen’s opinion. We are continuing to
monitor the developments involving Arthur Andersen, and we have not made a final
decision as to which independent accountants will audit our financial statements for
2002.We wish everyone at Arthur Andersen well and those who have worked with us
Godspeed, as this most unusual situation develops.

The last couple of years for Atlantic American have been a time where one insurance
company or another has not been performing at their usual level of profitability. \We
believe that the problems which have led to this lack of performance have been fixed.
Our Company’s diversification by product line, and its growing diversification by
region, have ensured our continuous profitability during tough times for our industry.
We are pleased that our consolidated profitability has never been in question, but it is
time for our Company to begin “hitting on all cylinders.” Barring something unforeseen
—and after September 11th, who can tell what the future will bring — all of our companies
will be running smoothly next year, so we expect that 2002 will be an excellent year
for Atlantic American.

Thank you for your continued trust and confidence.

J. Mack Robinson Hilton H. Howell, Ir.
Chairman of the Board President and CEO
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PART I

Item 1. Business

The Company

Atlantic American Corporation, a Georgia corporation incorporated in 1968 (the “Parent” or
“Company”), is a holding company that operates through its subsidiaries in well-defined specialty markets
of the life, health, property and casualty insurance industries. Atlantic American’s principal subsidiaries are
American Southern Insurance Company and American Safety Insurance Company (collectively known as
“American Southern”), Association Casualty Insurance Company (“ACIC”), Georgia Casualty & Surety
Company, (“Georgia Casualty”’) and Bankers Fidelity Life Insurance Company (“Bankers Fidelity”).

On July 1, 1999 the Company, for an aggregate price of $33.0 million, acquired 100% of the
outstanding stock of Association Casualty Insurance Company (“ACIC”) and its affiliated agency,
Association Risk Management General Agency, Inc (“ARMGA”), both of which are domiciled in Texas.
The acquisition of both companies was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Together
ACIC and ARMGA are referred to as Association Casualty.

The Company’s strategy is to focus on well-defined geographic, demographic and/or product niches
within the insurance market place. The underwriting function of each of the Company’s subsidiaries
operates with relative autonomy, which allows for quick reaction to market opportunities. In addition, the
Company seeks to develop and expand cross-selling opportunities and other synergies among its
subsidiaries as they arise.

Casualty Operations

The Company’s casualty operations are composed of three distinct entities, American Southern,
Association Casualty and Georgia Casualty. The primary products offered by the casualty group are
described below, followed by an overview of each company.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance policies provide indemnity and medical benefits to insured
workers for injuries sustained in the course of their employment.

Business Automobile Insurance policies provide for bodily injury and/or property damage liability
coverage, uninsured motorists coverage, and physical damage coverage to commercial accounts.

General Liability Insurance policies cover bodily injury and property damage liability for both
premises and completed operations exposures for general classes of business.

Property Insurance policies provide for payment of losses on real and personal property caused by
fire and other multiple perils.

Personal Automobile Insurance policies provide for bodily injury and property damage liability
coverage, uninsured motorists coverage, and physical damage coverage for individuals.

American Southern. American Southern provides tailored fleet automobile and long-haul physical
damage insurance coverage, on a multi-year contract basis, to state governments, local municipalities and
other large motor pools and fleets (“block accounts’) that can be specifically rated and underwritten. The
size of the block accounts insured by American Southern are such that individual class experience
generally can be determined, which allows for customized policy terms and rates. American Southern
produces business in 18 of the 24 states in the Southeast and Midwest in which it is authorized to conduct
business. Additionally, American Southern provides personal automobile insurance to the members of the
Carolina Motor Club, an AAA affiliate. While the majority of American Southern’s premiums are derived
from auto liability and auto physical damage, American Southern also provides property, general liability
and surety coverage.



The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, the allocation of American Southern’s net
earned premiums for each of its principal product lines:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)
Automobile Liability................... $23,677  $22,795  $24,573  $23,396  $30,909
Automobile Physical Damage ........... 8,732 7,397 6,112 4,288 4,508
General Liability . ..................... 3,161 3,536 4,302 4,291 3,116
Property ........ ... 3,386 3,383 3,118 2,970 3,206
Surety . ..o 67 61 61 57 60
Total ........................ $39,023  $37,172  $38,166  $35,002  $41,799

Georgia Casualty. Georgia Casualty is a property-casualty insurance company providing workers’
compensation, property, general liability, automobile, umbrella, inland marine and mechanical breakdown
coverage to businesses throughout the Southeastern United States.

Georgia Casualty’s primary marketing focus is toward small to middle market accounts with low to
moderate hazard grades, ranging from $15,000 to $250,000 in written premium. In addition to the wide
range of commercial products available, Georgia Casualty offers customized products for nine classes of
business, including, but not limited to, light manufacturing, restaurants, golf clubs and artisan contractors.
These products, along with innovative risk management services and exceptional claims handling, are
offered through an exclusive network of independent agents.

Georgia Casualty is licensed to do business in thirteen states. Its principal marketing territories
include Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee.

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, the allocation of Georgia Casualty’s net
earned premiums for each of its principal product lines:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)
Workers’ Compensation ................ $10,744  $16,741  $13,157 $14,344  $12,841
Business Automobile .................. 5,412 4918 2,876 3,750 4,031
General Liability . ..................... 2,610 2,531 1,251 1,619 1,387
Property ....... ..o 6,313 4,386 2,119 2,100 1,657
Total ......... ... ... L. $25,579  $28,576  $19,403  $21,813  $19,916

Association Casualty. Association Casualty is a property-casualty insurance company that has
historically specialized in workers’ compensation insurance in the state of Texas. During 2000, Association
Casualty began offering general liability, property, automobile, and other commercial coverages to
complement its existing book of business and continued these efforts in 2001.

Association Casualty is licensed to do business in eight states. Currently, its principal marketing
territory is Texas.

Association Casualty had net earned premiums of $25.7 million, of which 88.6% was workers’
compensation business during 2001 compared to 94.7% during the same period for 2000.



The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, the allocation of Association Casualty’s net
earned premiums for each of its principal product lines since its acquisition by the Company.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999(1)
(In thousands)

Workers’ Compensation . ..............ouuiiiuneiinnennn... $22,784  $19,051 $8,158
Business Automobile . ....... ... .. .. 671 64 —
General Liability ......... ... i 117 5 —
Property ... 1,001 81 —
Group Accident and Health . ............................... 1,138 909 340
Total ... $25,711  $20,110  $8,498

(1) Includes results for the period July 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999.

Bankers Fidelity

Bankers Fidelity, which constitutes the life and health operations of the Company, offers a variety of
life and supplemental health products with a focus on the senior markets. Products offered by Bankers
Fidelity include: ordinary life, Medicare supplement, cancer, and other supplemental health insurance
products. Health business, primarily Medicare supplement, accounted for 74.5% of Bankers Fidelity’s net
premiums in 2001. Life insurance, including both whole and term life insurance policies, accounted for
25.5% of Bankers Fidelity’s premiums in 2001. In terms of the number of policies written in 2001, 48%
were life policies and 52% were health policies.

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, the allocation of Bankers Fidelity’s net
premiums earned for each of its principal product lines followed by a brief description of the principal
products:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)
Life Insurance ..........oouuuunnno... $14,096 $13,445 $12,499  $11,748  $10,453
Medicare Supplement.................. 38,268 31,295 25,822 19,743 12,534
Cancer, Accident and Other Health ... ... 2,912 2,899 3,206 2,986 3,980
Total Accident and Health . ........... 41,180 34,194 29,028 22,729 16,514

Total Life and Accident and Health .. $55,276  $47,639  $41,527  $34,477  $26,967

Life Products. Bankers Fidelity offers non-participating individual term and whole life insurance
policies with a variety of riders and options.

Medicare Supplement. Bankers Fidelity currently markets 7 of the 10 standardized Medicare
supplement policies created under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (“OBRA 19907),
which are designed to provide insurance coverage for certain expenses not covered by the Medicare
program, including copayments and deductibles.

Cancer, Accident & Other Health Coverages. Bankers Fidelity offers several policies providing for
payment of benefits in connection with the treatment of diagnosed cancer, as well as a number of other
policies including convalescent care, accident expense, hospital/surgical and disability.



Marketing
Casualty Operations

American Southern. American Southern’s business is marketed through a small number of
specialized, experienced independent agents. Most of American Southern’s agents are paid a moderate up-
front commission with the potential for additional commission by participating in a profit sharing
arrangement that is directly linked to the profitability of the business generated. In addition, a significant
portion (approximately 40.3% of total written premium in 2001) of American Southern’s premiums are
assumed from third parties. In arrangements similar to those with its agents, the premium assumed from
some of these parties is adjusted based upon the profitability of the assumed business. During 1998,
American Southern formed American Auto Club Insurance Agency, LLC in a 50/50 joint venture with
the AAA of the Carolinas motor club to market personal automobile insurance to the members of the
automobile club. The program, which began writing business in 1999, had gross written premiums of
approximately $6.1 million during 2001.

Association Casualty. Association Casualty is represented by a field force of approximately
110 independent agents for the sale and distribution of its insurance products. Each agency is a party to a
standard agency contract that sets forth the commission structure and other terms and can be terminated
by either party. Association Casualty also offers a contingent profit sharing arrangement that allows the
most profitable agents to earn additional commissions when specific loss experience and premium growth
goals are achieved. Marketing efforts are handled by an experienced staff of insurance professionals.

Georgia Casualty. Georgia Casualty is represented by a field force of approximately 75 independent
agents for the sale and distribution of its insurance products. Each agency is a party to a standard agency
contract that sets forth the commission structure and other terms and can be terminated by either party
upon thirty days written notice. Georgia Casualty also offers a contingent profit-sharing arrangement that
allows the most profitable agents to earn additional commissions when specific loss experience and
premium growth goals are achieved. Marketing efforts, directed by experienced marketing professionals,
are complemented by the underwriting, risk management, and audit staffs of Georgia Casualty, who are
available to assist agents in the presentation of all insurance products and services to their insureds.

Bankers Fidelity

Bankers Fidelity markets its policies through commissioned, independent agents. In general, Bankers
Fidelity enters contractual arrangements with general agents who, in turn, contract with independent
agents. The standard agreements set forth the commission arrangements and are terminable by either party
upon thirty days written notice. General agents receive an override commission on sales made by agents
contracted by them. Management believes utilizing direct writing, experienced agents, as well as
independent general agents who recruit and train their own agents, is cost effective. All independent agents
are compensated on a pure commission basis. Using independent agents also enables Bankers Fidelity to
expand or contract their sales forces at any time without incurring significant additional expense.

Bankers Fidelity has implemented a selective agent qualification process and had 2,533 licensed agents
in 2001. The agents concentrate their sales activities in either the accident and health or life insurance
product lines. During 2001, a total of 1,314 agents wrote policies on behalf of Bankers Fidelity.

Products of Bankers Fidelity compete directly with products offered by other insurance companies, as
agents may represent several insurance companies. Bankers Fidelity, in an effort to motivate agents to
market their products, offers the following agency services: a unique lead system, competitive products and
commission structures, efficient claims service, prompt payment of commissions, simplified policy issue
procedures, periodic sales incentive programs and, in some cases, protected sales territories consisting of
counties and/or zip codes.

The company utilizes a distribution sales system which is centered around a lead generation plan that
rewards qualified agents with leads in accordance with monthly production goals. In addition, a protected
territory is established for each qualified agent, which entitles them to all leads produced within that
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territory. The territories are zip code or county based and encompass enough physical territory to produce
a minimum senior population of 12,000. In addition, Bankers Fidelity recruits at a general agent level
rather than at a managing general agent level in an effort to reduce commission expenses further.

The Company believes this distribution system solves an agent’s most important dilemma —
prospecting — and allows Bankers Fidelity to build long-term relationships with individual producers who
view Bankers Fidelity as their primary company. In addition, management believes that Bankers Fidelity’s
product line is less sensitive to competitor pricing and commissions because of the perceived value of the
protected territory and the lead generation plan. Through the implementation of this distribution channel,
production per agent contracted increased substantially when compared to Bankers Fidelity’s general
brokerage division.

Underwriting

Casualty Operations

American Southern specializes in the handling of block accounts such as states and municipalities
that generally are sufficiently large to establish separate class experience, relying upon the underwriting
expertise of its agents. In contrast, Georgia Casualty and Association Casualty underwrite the majority of
their accounts in-house.

During the course of the policy year, extensive use is made of risk management representatives to
assist underwriters in identifying and correcting potential loss exposures and to pre-inspect the majority of
the new accounts that are underwritten. The results of each product line are reviewed on a stand-alone
basis. When the results are below expectations, management takes appropriate corrective action which may
include raising rates, reviewing underwriting standards, reducing commissions paid to agents, altering or
declining to renew accounts at expiration, and/or terminating agencies with an unprofitable book of
business.

American Southern also acts as a reinsurer with respect to all of the risks associated with certain
automobile policies issued by state administrative agencies, naming the state and various local
governmental entities as insureds. Premiums written from such policies constituted $20.4 million of
American Southern’s gross premiums written in 2001. For 2001, premiums assumed of $20.4 million,
include a single state contract of $14.1 million. These contracts are periodically subject to competitive
renewal quotes and the loss of a significant contract could have a material adverse effect on the business or
financial condition of the Company. (See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Bankers Fidelity

Bankers Fidelity issues a variety of products for both health and life, which includes Medicare
Supplement and mainly senior life products typically with small face amounts of not less than $1,000 and
up. The majority of its products are “Yes’ or ‘No’ applications which are underwritten on a non-medical
basis. Bankers Fidelity offers products to all age groups, but primarily to the senior market. For life
products other than the senior market, the company may require medical information such as medical
examinations subject to age and face amount based on published guidelines. For example, such medical
information is ordered for all applicants regardless of age and face amounts of $50,000 and above. For face
amounts of $5,000 to $49,999 medical information is ordered only for ages 51 and above. Approximately,
95% of the net premiums earned for both health and life insurance sold during 2001 were derived from
insurance written below Bankers Fidelity’s medical limits. For the senior market, Bankers Fidelity issues
products primarily on an accept-or-reject basis with face amounts up to $30,000 for ages 45-70, $20,000
for ages 71-80 and $10,000 for ages 81-85. Banker’s Fidelity retains a maximum amount of $50,000 with
respect to any individual life (see “Reinsurance”).

Applications for insurance are reviewed to determine the face amount, age, and medical history.
Depending upon this information and information obtained from the Medical Information Bureau (M.I.B.)
report, paramedical requirements, medical records, and, where indicated, special tests are ordered. If
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deemed necessary, Bankers Fidelity may use investigative services to supplement and substantiate
information. For certain limited coverages, Bankers Fidelity has adopted simplified policy issue procedures
by which an application containing a variety of Yes/No health related questions is submitted. For these
plans, a M.I.B. report is always ordered, however, paramedical requirements and medical records are not
ordered in most cases. Presently, approximately 10-15% of all applications for individuals under age 80 are
verified by telephone interview with the client. For ages 80 and above, 100% of applications are verified by
telephone interview.

Policyholder and Claims Services

The Company believes that prompt, efficient policyholder and claims services are essential to its
continued success in marketing its insurance products (see “Competition”). Additionally, the Company
believes that its insureds are particularly sensitive to claim processing time and to the accessibility of
qualified staff to answer inquiries. Accordingly, the Company’s policyholder and claims services include
expeditious disposition of service requests by providing toll-free access to all customers, 24-hour claim
reporting services, and direct computer links with some of its largest accounts. The Company also utilizes
a state-of-the-art automatic call distribution system to insure that inbound calls to customer service
support groups are processed efficiently. Operational data generated from this system allows management
to further refine ongoing client service programs and service representative training modules.

The Company supports a Customer Awareness Program as the basis for its customer service
philosophy. All personnel are required to attend customer service classes. Hours have been expanded in all
service areas to serve customers and agents in all time zones.

Casualty Operations

American Southern, Association Casualty, and Georgia Casualty control their claims costs by utilizing
an in-house staff of claim supervisors to investigate, verify, negotiate and settle claims. Upon notification of
an occurrence purportedly giving rise to a claim, the claims department conducts a preliminary
investigation, determines whether an insurable event has occurred and, if so, records the claim. The
casualty companies frequently utilize independent adjusters and appraisers to service claims which require
on-site inspections.

Bankers Fidelity

Insureds obtain claim forms by calling the claims department customer service group. To shorten
claim processing time, a letter detailing all supporting documents that are required to complete a claim for
a particular policy is sent to the customer along with the correct claim form. With respect to life policies,
the claim is entered into Bankers Fidelity’s claims system when the proper documentation is received.
Properly documented claims are generally paid within three to nine business days of receipt.



Reserves

The following table sets forth information concerning the Company’s reserves for losses and claims
and reserves for loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) for the periods indicated:

(In thousands)

2001 2000 1999
Balance at January 1 ......... ... . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... $133,220 $126,556 $ 86,768
Less: Reinsurance recoverables . ......................... (38,851)  (38,759)  (22,625)
Net balance at January 1........... .. ... ... ... ..... 94,369 87,797 64,143
Incurred related to:
CUITENT YEAT . .ottt t et ettt e et 108,068 102,336 79,328
Prior years .. ... (2,415) (6,085) (2,427)
Total incurred . ....... .. ... .. .. . . . 105,653 96,251 76,901
Paid related to:
CUITENt YEAT . .ttt et e e 59,506 54,313 44,623
Prior years . ....... . 44,730 35,366 28,558
Total paid........ ... . 104,236 89,679 73,181
Reserves acquired due to acquisition ..................... — — 19,934
Net balance at December 31........... ... ... ... . ... .... 95,786 94,369 87,797
Plus: Reinsurance recoverables . .......... ... ... . ... ..... 47,729 38,851 38,759
Balance at December 31 ... ... .. .. .. ... ... $143,515  $133,220 $126,556

Casualty Operations

Atlantic American’s casualty operations maintain loss reserves representing estimates of amounts
necessary for payment of losses and LAE. The casualty operations also maintain incurred but not reported
reserves and bulk reserves for future development. These loss reserves are estimates, based on known facts
and circumstances at a given point in time, of amounts the insurer expects to pay on incurred claims. All
balances are reviewed annually by qualified independent actuaries and quarterly by in-house actuaries.
Reserves for LAE are intended to cover the ultimate costs of settling claims, including investigation and
defense of lawsuits resulting from such claims. Loss reserves for reported claims are based on a case-by-
case evaluation of the type of claim involved, the circumstances surrounding the claim, and the policy
provisions relating to the type of loss along with anticipated future development. The LAE for claims
reported and claims not reported is based on historical statistical data and anticipated future development.
Inflation and other factors which may affect claim payments are implicitly reflected in the reserving
process through analysis of cost trends and reviews of historical reserve results.

The casualty operations establish reserves for claims based upon: (a) management’s estimate of
ultimate liability and claim adjusters’ evaluations for unpaid claims reported prior to the close of the
accounting period, (b) estimates of incurred but not reported claims based on past experience, and
(c) estimates of LAE. The estimated liability is continually reviewed and updated, and changes to the
estimated liability are recorded in the statement of operations in the year in which such changes become
known.

The table on the following page sets forth the development of balance sheet reserves for unpaid losses
and LAE for the casualty operations’ insurance lines for 1991 through 2001, including periods prior to the
Company’s ownership of American Southern and Association Casualty. The top line of the table represents
the estimated amount of losses and LAE for claims arising in all prior years that were unpaid at the
balance sheet date for each of the indicated periods, including an estimate of losses that have been
incurred but not yet reported. The amounts represent initial reserve estimates at the respective balance



sheet dates for the current and all prior years. The next portion of the table shows the cumulative amounts
paid with respect to claims in each succeeding year. The lower portion of the table shows the reestimated
amounts of previously recorded reserves based on experience as of the end of each succeeding year.

The reserve estimates are modified as more information becomes known about the frequency and
severity of claims for individual years. The “cumulative redundancy or deficiency” for each year represents
the aggregate change in such year’s estimates through the end of 2001. In evaluating this information, it
should be noted that the amount of the redundancy or deficiency for any year represents the cumulative
amount of the changes from initial reserve estimates for such year. Operations for any one year are only
affected, favorably or unfavorably, by the amount of the change in the estimate for such year. Conditions
and trends that have affected development of the reserves in the past may not necessarily occur in the
future. Accordingly, it is inappropriate to predict future redundancies or deficiencies based on the data in
this table.
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Bankers Fidelity

Bankers Fidelity establishes future policy benefits reserves to meet future obligations under
outstanding policies. These reserves are calculated to satisfy policy and contract obligations as they mature.
The amount of reserves for insurance policies is calculated using assumptions for interest rates, mortality
and morbidity rates, expenses, and withdrawals. Reserves are adjusted periodically based on published
actuarial tables with some modification to reflect actual experience (see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Reinsurance

The insurance subsidiaries purchase reinsurance from unaffiliated insurers and reinsurers to reduce
their liability on individual risks and to protect against catastrophic losses. In a reinsurance transaction, an
insurance company transfers, or “cedes,” a portion or all of its exposure on insurance policies to a
reinsurer. The reinsurer assumes the exposure in return for a portion of the premiums. The ceding of
insurance does not legally discharge the insurer from primary liability for the full amount of policies
written by it, and the ceding company incurs a loss if the reinsurer fails to meet its obligations under the
reinsurance agreement.

Casualty Operations

American Southern. The limits of risks retained by American Southern vary by type of policy and
insured, and amounts in excess of such limits are reinsured. The largest net amount insured in any one risk
is $100,000. Reinsurance is generally maintained as follows: for fire, inland marine, and commercial
automobile physical damage, recovery of losses over $40,000 up to $90,000. Net retentions for third party
losses are generally over $35,000 up to $100,000. Catastrophe coverage for all lines except third party
liability is for 95% of $6.6 million over $400,000.

Association Casualty. Association Casualty retains a maximum amount of $250,000 per occurrence
on workers” compensation up to $20.0 million. Limits per occurrence within the treaties are as follows:
Automobile and general liability — $2.0 million excess $150,000 retention; Property — $3.0 million excess
$100,000 retention. The property lines of coverage are protected with an excess of loss treaty which affords
recovery for property losses in excess of $3.0 million up to a maximum of $5.0 million.

Georgia Casualty. Georgia Casualty’s basic treaties cover all claims in excess of $200,000 per
occurrence. Limits per occurrence within the treaties and excess of the retention are as follows: Workers’
compensation statutory limits; Property per location — $10.0 million; Excess of policy and extra
contractual obligations — $10.0 million; Liability — $6.0 million; Surety — $3.0 million; and Auto
liability — $1.0 million. Georgia Casualty maintains a property catastrophe treaty with a $7.15 million limit
excess of a $350,000 retention. In 2001, Georgia Casualty entered into a quota share reinsurance program
to cover 40% of the first $200,000 of occurrence losses and the first $350,000 of catastrophe losses on
policies written after January 1, 2001.

Bankers Fidelity

Bankers Fidelity has entered into reinsurance contracts ceding the excess of their retention to several
primary reinsurers. Maximum retention by Bankers Fidelity on any one individual in the case of life
insurance policies is $50,000. At December 31, 2001, Bankers Fidelity’s reinsured annualized premiums
totaled $29.9 million of the $305.9 million of life insurance then in force, generally under yearly renewable
term agreements. Certain reinsurance agreements that are no longer active for new business remain in
force.
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Competition

Casualty Operations

American Southern. The businesses in which American Southern engages are highly competitive.
The principal areas of competition are pricing and service. Many competing property and casualty
companies which have been in business longer than American Southern have available more diversified
lines of insurance and have substantially greater financial resources. Management believes, however, that
the policies it sells are competitive with those providing similar benefits offered by other insurers doing
business in the states where American Southern operates.

Association Casualty. As a writer of workers’ compensation insurance, Association Casualty’s biggest
competition comes from carriers that can provide insureds with all of their commercial insurance needs. In
addition, the State of Texas operates a state workers’ compensation fund that competes directly with the
carriers in the state. Association Casualty counters these competitive issues by offering high quality service.
Additionally, Association Casualty began writing additional commercial coverages in 2000 in an effort to
make itself more competitive and has continued to diversify its book of business in 2001.

Georgia Casualty. Georgia Casualty’s insurance business is highly competitive. The competition can
be placed in four categories: (1) companies with higher A.M. Best ratings, (2) alternative workers’
compensation markets, (3) self-insured funds, and (4) insurance companies that actively solicit monoline
workers’ compensation accounts. Georgia Casualty’s efforts are directed in the following three general
categories where the company has the best opportunity to control exposures and claims: (1) manufactur-
ing, (2) artisan contractors, and (3) service industries. Management believes that Georgia Casualty’s keys
to being competitive in these areas are maintaining strong underwriting standards, risk management
programs, writing workers’ compensation coverages as part of the total insurance package, maintaining and
expanding its loyal network of agents and development of new agents in key territories. In addition,
Georgia Casualty offers quality customer service to its agents and insureds, and provides rehabilitation,
medical management, and claims management services to its insureds. Georgia Casualty believes that it
will continue to be competitive in the marketplace based on its current strategies and services.

Bankers Fidelity

The life and health insurance business is highly competitive and includes a large number of insurance
companies, many of which have substantially greater financial resources. Bankers Fidelity believes that the
primary competitors are the Blue Cross/Blue Shield companies, AARP, the Prudential Insurance
Company of America, Conseco, American Travellers, Kanawha Life, American Heritage, Bankers Life
and Casualty Company, United American Insurance Corporation, and Standard Life of Oklahoma.
Bankers Fidelity competes with other insurers on the basis of premium rates, policy benefits, and service to
policyholders. Bankers Fidelity also competes with other insurers to attract and retain the allegiance of its
independent agents through commission arrangements, accessibility and marketing assistance, lead
programs, reputation, and market expertise. Bankers Fidelity believes that it competes effectively on the
basis of policy benefits, services, and market expertise.

Rating

The following ratings are not designed for investors and do not constitute recommendations to buy,
sell, or hold any security. Ratings are important in the insurance industry, and improved ratings should
have a favorable impact on the ability of the companies to compete in the marketplace.

In 1999, for the first time, Atlantic American Corporation and its subsidiaries underwent a rating and
review process by Standard & Poor’s. As a result of the review, each of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries was assigned a single “A—"" counterparty credit and financial strength rating. This rating was
affirmed in 2000 and now includes Association Casualty.

On November 1, 2000 these ratings were placed on CreditWatch with negative implications. On
March 14, 2001, Standard & Poor’s removed the Company from CreditWatch and lowered its
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counterparty credit rating and financial strength rating to “BBB+"/Neg and “BBB+", respectively from a
single “A—". Currently, these ratings remain unchanged.

Each year A.M. Best Company, Inc. publishes Best’s Insurance Reports (“Best’s”), which include
assessments and ratings of all insurance companies. Best’s ratings, which may be revised quarterly, fall into
fifteen categories ranging from A++ (Superior) to F (in liquidation). Best’s ratings are based on an
analysis of the financial condition and operations of an insurance company compared to the industry in
general.

American Southern. American Southern and its wholly-owned subsidiary, American Safety
Insurance Company, are each currently rated “A—"" (Excellent) by A.M. Best.

Association Casualty. Association Casualty maintains a rating of “A—" (Excellent) by A.M. Best.
Georgia Casualty. Georgia Casualty maintains an A.M. Best’s rating of “B++" (Very Good).

Bankers Fidelity. Bankers Fidelity maintains an A.M. Best’s rating of “B++" (Very Good).

Regulation

In common with all domestic insurance companies, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject
to regulation and supervision in the jurisdictions in which they do business. Statutes typically delegate
regulatory, supervisory, and administrative powers to state insurance commissions. The method of such
regulation varies, but regulation relates generally to the licensing of insurers and their agents, the nature of
and limitations on investments, approval of policy forms, reserve requirements, the standards of solvency
which must be met and maintained, deposits of securities for the benefit of policyholders, and periodic
examinations of insurers and trade practices, among other things. The Company’s products generally are
subject to rate regulation by state insurance commissions, which require that certain minimum loss ratios
be maintained. Certain states also have insurance holding company laws which require registration and
periodic reporting by insurance companies controlled by other corporations licensed to transact business
within their respective jurisdictions. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to such legislation
and are registered as controlled insurers in those jurisdictions in which such registration is required. Such
laws vary from state to state but typically require periodic disclosure concerning the corporation which
controls the registered insurers and all subsidiaries of such corporations, as well as prior notice to, or
approval by, the state insurance commission of intercorporate transfers of assets (including payments of
dividends in excess of specified amounts by the insurance subsidiaries) within the holding company system.

Most states require that rate schedules and other information be filed with the state’s insurance
regulatory authority, either directly or through a rating organization with which the insurer is affiliated.
The regulatory authority may disapprove a rate filing if it determines that the rates are inadequate,
excessive, or discriminatory. The Company has historically experienced no significant regulatory resistance
to its applications for rate increases.

A state may require that acceptable securities be deposited for the protection either of policyholders
located in those states or of all policyholders. As of December 31, 2001, $15.9 million of securities were on
deposit either directly with various state authorities or with third parties pursuant to various custodial
agreements on behalf of Bankers Fidelity and the Casualty Operations.

Virtually all of the states in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are licensed to transact
business require participation in their respective guaranty funds designed to cover claims against insolvent
insurers. Insurers authorized to transact business in these jurisdictions are generally subject to assessments
of up to 4% of annual direct premiums written in that jurisdiction to pay such claims, if any. The
occurrence and amount of such assessments has increased in recent years. The likelihood and amount of
any future assessments cannot be estimated until an insolvency has occurred. For the last five years, the
amount incurred by the Company was not material.
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NAIC Ratios

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”) was established to provide
guidelines to assess the financial strength of insurance companies for state regulatory purposes. The NAIC
conducts annual reviews of the financial data of insurance companies primarily through the application of
13 financial ratios prepared on a statutory basis. The annual statements are submitted to state insurance
departments to assist them in monitoring insurance companies in their states and to set forth a desirable
range in which companies should fall in each such ratio.

The NAIC suggests that insurance companies which fall outside of the “usual” range in four or more
financial ratios are those most likely to require analysis by state regulators. However, according to the
NAIC, it may not be unusual for a financially sound company to have several ratios outside the “usual”
range, and in normal years the NAIC expects 15% of the companies it tests to be outside the “usual”
range in four or more categories.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, American Southern, Bankers Fidelity, and Georgia Casualty
were within the NAIC “usual” range for all 13 financial ratios. Association Casualty was outside the
“usual” range on two ratios, the change in net writings and the two-year overall operating ratio. The
change in the net writings variance resulted primarily from a change in the methodology used by
Association Casualty to recognize written premiums. During the fourth quarter of 2000, Association
Casualty began recognizing written premiums on an annualized basis instead of using the installment
method. Significant premium rate increases during 2001 also contributed to the change in the net writings
variance. The two year overall operating ratio was outside the “usual” range primarily due to adverse
development on prior year losses.

Risk-Based Capital

Risk-based capital (“RBC”) is used by rating agencies and regulators as an early warning tool to
identify weakly capitalized companies for the purpose of initiating further regulatory action. The RBC
calculation determines the amount of Adjusted Capital needed by a company to avoid regulatory action.
“Authorized Control Level Risk-Based Capital” (“ACL”) is calculated; if a company’s adjusted capital is
200% or lower than ACL, it is subject to regulatory action. At December 31, 2001, all of the Company’s
insurance subsidiaries exceeded the RBC regulatory levels.
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Investments

Investment income represents a significant portion of the Company’s total income. Insurance company
investments are subject to state insurance laws and regulations which limit the concentration and types of
investments. The following table provides information on the Company’s investments as of the dates
indicated.

December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Fixed maturities:

Bonds:
U.S. Government agencies and
authorities .. ..................... $ 81,440 34.2% $117,564 50.9% $106,816 48.3%
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions . . ......... ... . ... ... 4,317 1.8 4,088 1.8 4,078 1.8
Public utilities ..................... 4,229 1.8 3,671 1.6 2,009 0.9
Convertibles and bonds with warrants
attached......................... — NIL — NIL — NIL
All other corporate bonds ............ 42,124 17.7 32,721 14.2 21,015 9.5
Certificates of deposit ............... 1,360 0.6 1,360 0.6 3,082 1.4
Total fixed maturities(1) ...... 133,470 56.1 159,404 69.1 137,000 61.9
Common and preferred stocks(2) ....... 54,628 22.9 43,945 19.0 48,684 22.0
Mortgage, policy and student loans(3) ... 6,134 2.6 6,636 2.9 7,394 3.3
Other invested assets(4) ............... 4,854 2.0 5,862 2.5 5,717 2.6
Realestate .......................... 46 NIL 46 NIL 46 NIL
Short-term investments(5) ............. 39,151 16.4 15,013 6.5 22,471 10.2
Total investments............. $238,283 100.0% $230,906  100.0% $221,312  100.0%

(1) Fixed maturities are carried on the balance sheet at market value. Total cost of fixed maturities was
$132.2 million as of December 31, 2001, $160.6 million as of December 31, 2000, and $143.2 million
as of December 31, 1999.

(2) Equity securities are valued at market. Total cost of equity securities was $41.7 million as of
December 31, 2001, $32.1 million as of December 31, 2000, and $31.2 million as of December 31,
1999.

(3) Mortgage loans and policy and student loans are valued at historical cost.

(4) Investments in other invested assets which are traded are valued at estimated market value and those
in which the Company has significant influence are accounted for using the equity method. Total cost
of other invested assets was $5.1 million as of December 31, 2001, $6.0 million as of December 31,
2000 and $4.9 million as of December 31, 1999.

(5) Short-term investments are valued at cost, which approximates market value.
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Results of the investment portfolio for periods shown were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Average investments(1) .......... . ... . $227,922  $222,369  $205,387
Net investment INCOME . . ... ..ottt 14,141 15,320 12,434
Average yield on investments ............... ... ... 6.20% 6.89% 6.05%
Realized investment gains, net .......................... 1,708 1,922 2,831

(1) Calculated as the average of the balances at the beginning of the year and at the end of each of the
succeeding four quarters. Management’s investment strategy is an increased investment in short and
medium maturity bonds and common and preferred stocks.

Employees
The Company and its subsidiaries employed 264 people at December 31, 2001.

Financial Information By Industry Segment

The Company’s primary insurance subsidiaries operate with relative autonomy and each company is
evaluated based on its individual performance. American Southern, Association Casualty, and Georgia
Casualty operate in the Property and Casualty insurance market, while Bankers Fidelity operates in the
Life and Health insurance market. All segments derive revenue from the collection of premiums, as well
as from investment income. Substantially all revenue other than those in the corporate and other segment
are from external sources. (See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The table below and the information following the table set forth, for each executive officer of the
Company as of March 1, 2002, his name, age, positions with the Company, principal occupation, and
business experience for the past five years and prior service with the Company (based upon information
supplied by each of them).

Director or

Name Age Position with the Company Officer Since
J. Mack Robinson......................... 78 Chairman of the Board 1974
Hilton H. Howell, Jr. ...... ... .. ... . ..... 39 Director, President & CEO 1992

Officers are elected annually and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Mr. Robinson has served as Director and Chairman of the Board since 1974 and served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from September 1988 to May 1995. In addition,
Mr. Robinson is a Director of Bull Run Corporation and Gray Communications Systems, Inc.

Mr. Howell has been President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May 1995, and
prior thereto served as Executive Vice President of the Company from October 1992 to May 1995. He has
been a Director of the Company since October 1992. Mr. Howell is the son-in-law of Mr. Robinson. He is
also a Director of Bull Run Corporation and Gray Communications Systems, Inc.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain of the statements and subject matters contained herein that are not based upon historical or
current facts deal with or may be impacted by potential future circumstances and developments, and
should be considered forward-looking and subject to various risks and uncertainties. Such forward-looking
statements are made based upon management’s belief, as well as assumptions made by and information
currently available to management pursuant to “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
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Reform Act of 1995. Such statements, and the discussion of such subject areas, involve, and therefore are
qualified by, the inherent risks and uncertainties surrounding future expectations generally, and may
materially differ from the Company’s actual future experience involving any one or more of such subject
areas. The Company has attempted to identify, in context, certain of the factors that it currently believes
may cause actual future experience and results to differ from current expectations. The Company’s
operations and results also may be subject to the effect of other risks and uncertainties in addition to the
relevant qualifying factors identified elsewhere herein, including, but not limited to, locality and seasonality
in the industries to which the Company offers its products, the impact of competitive products and pricing,
unanticipated increases in the rate and number of claims outstanding, volatility in the capital markets that
may have an impact on the Company’s investment portfolio, the uncertainty of general economic
conditions, and other risks and uncertainties identified from time to time in the Company’s periodic reports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Many of such factors are beyond the Company’s
ability to control or predict. As a result, the Company’s actual financial condition, results of operations and
stock price could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by the
Company. Undue reliance should not be placed upon forward-looking statements contained herein. The
Company does not intend to publicly update any forward-looking statements that may be made from time
to time by, or on behalf of, the Company.

Item 2. Properties

Owned Properties. The Company owns two parcels of unimproved property consisting of a total of
approximately seven acres located in Fulton and Washington Counties, Georgia. At December 31, 2001,
the aggregate book value of such properties was approximately $46,000.

Leased Properties. The Company leases space for its principal offices and for some of its insurance
operations in an office building located in Atlanta, Georgia, from Delta Life Insurance Company, under
leases which expire at various times from May 31, 2002 to July 31, 2005. Under the current terms of the
leases, the Company occupies approximately 65,489 square feet of office space. Delta Life Insurance
Company, the owner of the building, is controlled by J. Mack Robinson, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the largest shareholder of the Company. The terms of the leases are believed by Company
management to be comparable to terms which could be obtained by the Company from unrelated parties
for comparable rental property.

American Southern leases space for its offices in a building located in Atlanta, Georgia. The lease
term expires January 31, 2010. Under the terms of the lease, American Southern occupies approximately
17,014 square feet.

Association Casualty leases space for its principal offices in a building located in Austin, Texas. The
lease term expires December 31, 2005. Under the terms of the lease, Association Casualty occupies 18,913
square feet.

SIA, Inc. leases space for its principal offices in a building located in Stone Mountain, Georgia. The
lease term expires December 31, 2003. Under the terms of the lease, SIA, Inc. occupies 1,787 square feet.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Litigation

During 2000, American Southern renewed one of its larger accounts. Although this contract was
renewed through a competitive bidding process, one of the parties bidding for this particular contract
contested the award of this business to American Southern and filed a claim to obtain the nullification of
the contract. During the fourth quarter of 2000, American Southern received an unfavorable judgment
relating to this litigation and has appealed the ruling. The contract, which accounts for approximately 10%
of annualized premium revenue, is to remain in effect pending appeal. While management at this time
cannot predict the potential outcome in this case, or quantify the actual impact of an adverse decision, it
may have a material impact on the future results of operations of the Company.
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From time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and lawsuits
incidental to and in the ordinary course of their businesses. In the opinion of management, such claims
will not have a material effect on the business or financial condition of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s shareholders during the quarter ended
December 31, 2001.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

The Company’s common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market (Symbol: AAME). As of
March 19, 2002, there were 4,886 shareholders of record. The following table sets forth for the periods
indicated the high and low sale prices of the Company’s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq
National Market.

Year Ending December 31 High Low
2001
ISE QUATTET . . vttt et e et e e e e e e e $2.06 $1.63
20d QUATEET .« ..ottt e e 2.06 1.00
3rd QUATEET ...t 2.31 0.75
Ath QUATTET ...ttt 3.10 1.00
2000
ISt QUATEET . . . oottt et e e e e e $2.94 $2.25
20d QUATTET .« o\ttt 3.38 2.50
3rd QUATEET ...t 2.75 1.75
Ath QUATEET . ...t 2.50 1.75

The Company has not paid dividends to its common shareholders since the fourth quarter of 1988.
Payment of dividends in the future will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will
depend upon the financial condition, capital requirements, and earnings of the Company as well as other
factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant. The Company’s primary sources of cash for the
payment of dividends are dividends from its subsidiaries. Under the insurance code of the state of
jurisdiction under which each insurance subsidiary operates, cumulative dividend payments to the Parent
by its insurance subsidiaries are limited to the greater of 10% of accumulated statutory earnings or
statutory net income before recognizing realized investment gains of the insurance subsidiaries without the
prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner. The Company’s principal insurance subsidiaries had the
following accumulated statutory earnings as of December 31, 2001: Georgia Casualty — $14.5 million,
American Southern — $33.7 million, Association Casualty — $13.7 million, Bankers Fidelity Life —
$22.7 million. The Company has elected to retain its earnings to grow its business and does not anticipate
paying cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Insurance premiums ...................... $145,589  $133,497 $107,594 $ 91,292 $ 88,682
Investment income . .......... ... ... ...... 14,317 15,552 12,724 11,499 11,256
Otherincome. ..., 1,694 1,287 1,172 366 201
Realized investment gains, net ............. 1,708 1,922 2,831 2,909 1,076
Total revenue.................... 163,308 152,258 124,321 106,066 101,215
Insurance benefits and losses incurred ....... 106,896 97,628 78,162 60,845 61,018
Other expenses ............ccvvuvenenenn.. 52,159 49,874 42,237 36,518 32,026
Total benefits and expenses ........ 159,055 147,502 120,399 97,363 93,044
Income from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes ............... 4,253 4,756 3,922 8,703 8,171
Income tax provision (benefit) ............. 656 1,124 (6,988) 145 138
Income from continuing operations. . . ... 3,597 3,632 10,910 8,558 8,033
Netincome ..................... $ 3597 $ 3,632 $ 10910 $ 8,558 $§ 8,033
Basic net income per common share:
Income from continuing operations. . . ... $ 0§ 12 48 .37 .35
Netincome ..................... $ .10 12 8 48 .37 .35
Diluted net income per common share:
Income from continuing operations. . . ... $ 0§ 12 46 .37 .35
Netincome ..................... $ d0  $ 12 8 46 .37 .35
Book value per common share ............. $ 337 $ 318 $ 312 $ 360 $ 3.27
Common shares outstanding ............... 21,246 21,157 21,027 19,120 18,907
Total assets . ...........cooiuiiiininenn.. $412,019  $375,777  $351,144  $273,131  $271,860
Total long-term debt...................... $ 44,000 $ 46,500 $ 51,000 $ 23,600 $ 27,600
Total debt .......... .. ... ... .. .. ....... $ 44000 $ 46,500 $ 51,000 $ 26,000 $ 28,600
Total shareholders’ equity ................. $ 87,526 $ 83,240 $ 78,948 $ 82,217 $ 78,183

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of
operations of Atlantic American Corporation (“Atlantic American” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries for each of the three years in the periods ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto

included elsewhere herein.

Atlantic American is an insurance holding company whose operations are conducted through a group
of regional insurance companies: American Southern Insurance Company and American Safety Insurance
Company (together known as “American Southern”); Association Casualty Insurance Company and
Association Risk Management General Agency, Inc. (together known as “Association Casualty”); Georgia
Casualty & Surety Company (“Georgia Casualty”); and Bankers Fidelity Life Insurance Company
(“Bankers Fidelity”). Each operating company is managed separately based upon the geographic location

or the type of products it underwrites.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Atlantic American Corporation and its subsidiaries are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, in management’s belief,
conform to general practices within the insurance industry. The following is an explanation of the
Company’s accounting policies considered most significant by management. These accounting policies
inherently require estimation and actual results could differ from these estimates. Atlantic American does
not expect that changes in the estimates determined under these policies would have a material effect on
the Company’s financial condition or liquidity, although changes could have a material effect on its
consolidated results of operations.

Reinsurance receivables are amounts due from reinsurers and comprise 12% of the Company’s total
assets at December 31, 2001. Allowances for uncollectible amounts are established against reinsurance
receivables owed to the Company under reinsurance contracts, if appropriate. Failure of reinsurers to meet
their obligations due to insolvencies or disputes could result in uncollectible amounts and losses to the
Company.

Deferred income taxes comprise less than 1% of the Company’s total assets at December 31, 2001.
Deferred income taxes reflect the effect of temporary differences between assets and liabilities that are
recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for tax purposes. These
deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws. Valuation allowances are recognized to
reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. In assessing the
likelihood of realization, management considers estimates of future taxable income.

Deferred acquisition costs comprise 6% of the Company’s total assets at December 31, 2001. Deferred
acquisition costs are commissions, allowances, premium taxes, and other costs that vary with and are
primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal business and are generally deferred and amortized.
The deferred amounts are recorded as an asset on the balance sheet and amortized to income in a
systematic manner. Traditional life insurance and long-duration health insurance deferred policy acquisition
costs are amortized over the estimated premium-paying period of the related policies using assumptions
consistent with those used in computing policy benefit reserves. The deferred acquisition costs for property
and casualty insurance and short-duration health insurance are amortized over the effective period of the
related insurance policies. Deferred policy acquisition costs are expensed when such costs are deemed not
to be recoverable from future premiums (for traditional life and long-duration health insurance) and from
the related unearned premiums and investment income (for property and casualty and short-duration
health insurance).

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses comprise 44% of the Company’s total liabilities at
December 31, 2001. This obligation includes estimates for both reported claims not yet paid, and claims
incurred but not yet reported. Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense reserves for reported claims
are based on a case-by-case evaluation of the type of claim involved, the circumstances surrounding the
claim, and the policy provisions relating to the type of loss, along with anticipated future development.
Inflation and other factors which may affect claims payments are implicitly reflected in the reserving
process through analysis of cost trends and reviews of historical reserve results. Estimates of incurred but
not reported claims is based on past experience. If actual results differ from these assumptions, the amount
of the Company’s recorded liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses could require
adjustment.

Future policy benefits comprise 14% of the Company’s total liabilities at December 31, 2001. These
liabilities relate to life insurance products, and are based upon assumed future investment yields, mortality
rates, and withdrawal rates after giving effect to possible risks of adverse deviation. The assumed mortality
and withdrawal rates are based upon the Company’s experience. If actual results differ from these
assumptions, the amount of the Company’s recorded liability could require adjustment.

Please refer to Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for details regarding all of the
Company’s significant accounting policies.
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Overall Corporate Results

Revenues 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Property and Casualty:

American Southern........ ... ... ... .. ... .. .. .. ..... $ 43,779 $ 42,487 $ 42,926
Association Casualty............. ..., 29,668 23,290 9,844
Georgia Casualty.......... ..., 28,515 32,048 23,214
Total property and casualty ..................... 101,962 97,825 75,984

Life and Health:
Bankers Fidelity .......... ... ... ... . i, 60,244 53,587 47,511
Corporate and Other.............. ... .. ... .. 1,102 846 826
Total REVENUES .. ..ot o it e e $163,308  $152,258  $124,321

Income before taxes
Property and Casualty:

American Southern. .. ... ... .. .. ... . . . $ 679 $ 6,130 $ 6,336

Association Casualty.............coviiiinnnenan... (2,925) 256 301

Georgia Casualty. . ...t 2,106 (1,084) (1,271)

Total property and casualty ..................... 5,977 5,302 5,366

Life and Health:

Bankers Fidelity .......... ... ... ... .. 3,370 4,371 3,982
Corporate and Other.............. ... .. ... i, (5,094) (4,917) (5,426)
Total income before taxes .. ..., $ 4253 § 4756 $ 3,922

On a consolidated basis the Company’s net income for 2001 was $3.6 million or $.10 per diluted
share. Net income was $3.6 million ($.12 per diluted share) in 2000 and $10.9 million ($.46 per diluted
share) in 1999. In 1999, net income was favorably impacted by a $7.0 million deferred tax benefit related
primarily to a reduction in the Company’s valuation allowance that had previously been established against
its net deferred tax asset as compared to a benefit of $0.5 million in 2000 and $0.8 million in 2001. Pre-tax
income decreased from $4.8 million in 2000 to $4.3 million in 2001. The decline in pre-tax income for
2001 was due primarily to unsatisfactory underwriting results in Association Casualty related to adverse
development on prior year losses. Excluding Association Casualty, all of the Company’s operating units
reported profitable results.

A more detailed analysis of the individual operating entities and other corporate activities is provided
in the following discussion.
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Underwriting Results

American Southern

The following table summarizes American Southern’s premiums and underwriting ratios (dollars in
thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Gross written premiums .. ....... ... $45,490 $47.,643  $44,070
Ceded Premiums .. ..ottt e (5,931)  (4,603)  (5,540)
Net written premiums ... ...ttt $39,559  $43,040  $38,530
Net earned premiums . .. ...ovv et $39,023  $37,172  $38,166
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses ..................... 26,069 26,185 26,934
Underwriting €Xpenses . . ... ...veuueteune e 10,914 10,172 9,656
Underwriting inCome . ...........ouuiiiieeieaieaen... $ 2040 $ 815 $ 1,576
LoSS Tatio . . oot 66.8% 70.4% 70.6%
EXpense ratio. .. .....oouuit 28.0% 27.4% 25.3%
Combined ratio .. ......oti i 94.8% 97.8% 95.9%

Gross written premiums at American Southern decreased $2.2 million during 2001 primarily as a
result of the loss of one of its state contracts. The loss of this particular contract will result in a reduction
in annualized premium revenue of approximately $4.0 million. In addition, the American Auto Club
Insurance Agency (the “Agency”) produced lower than expected gross written premiums during 2001.
The Agency is a joint venture between American Southern and the AAA of the Carolinas motor club.
American Southern holds a 50% interest in the joint venture and underwrites the majority of the standard
automobile business written by the Agency. The Agency was formed in 1998 to market personal
automobile insurance to members of the auto club. This program, which began writing business in 1999,
had gross written premiums of approximately $6.1 million for 2001, a decrease of $1.1 million or 15.3%
from 2000.

Ceded premiums at American Southern increased $1.3 million or 28.9% during 2001. The increase in
ceded premiums is due to several factors. First, the rates charged by reinsurance companies increased
approximately 10% over 2000. In addition, American Southern’s premiums are ceded on an earned basis as
opposed to on a written basis, which results in an increase in ceded premiums when earned premiums
increase. Lastly, the company collected $0.4 million in penalty premiums from a specific reinsurance
agreement (the “Reinsurance Agreement”) and remitted them to the reinsurer. The Reinsurance
Agreement is related to certain program business and provides for additional penalty premiums based on
losses. During 2000, there were no penalty premiums collected by American Southern and, as a result,
ceded premiums increased in 2001 over ceded premiums in 2000.

Gross written premiums at American Southern increased $3.6 million in 2000 as compared to 1999
principally as a result of business produced by the Agency. The decrease in ceded premiums of
$0.9 million during 2000 was primarily due to the Reinsurance Agreement. In 1999, American Southern
collected $0.8 million in penalty premiums and remitted them to the reinsurer. As mentioned previously,
there were no penalty premiums collected in 2000 which resulted in the decrease in ceded premiums
during 2000 as compared to 1999.

In 2001, net earned premiums increased by 5.0% or $1.9 million. The increase in net earned
premiums was primarily attributable to the higher gross written premium in 2000.

In addition to the business written through the joint venture, American Southern produces much of
its business through contracts with various states and municipalities, some of which represent significant
amounts of revenue for the company. These contracts are periodically subject to competitive renewal
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quotes and the loss of a significant contract could have a material adverse effect on the business or
financial condition of American Southern and of the Company. In an effort to increase the number of
programs underwritten by American Southern and to insulate it from the loss of any one program,
American Southern is continually evaluating new underwriting programs. There can be no assurance,
however, that new programs or new accounts will offset lost business resulting from non-renewals of
accounts.

During 2000, American Southern renewed one of its larger accounts. Although this contract was
renewed through a competitive bidding process, one of the parties bidding for this particular contract
contested the award of this business to American Southern and filed a claim to obtain the nullification of
the contract. During the fourth quarter of 2000, American Southern received an unfavorable judgment and
has appealed the ruling. The contract, which accounts for approximately 10% of annualized premium
revenue, is to remain in effect pending appeal. While management at this time cannot predict the potential
outcome in this case, or quantify the actual impact of an adverse decision, an adverse outcome may have a
material adverse affect on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, American Southern’s earned premiums by
line of business (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Automobile liability ......... ... . ... . ... ... . .. $23.677  $22,795  $24,573
Automobile physical damage ............ ... ... ... oL 8,732 7,397 6,112
General liability. . ...... ... 3,161 3,536 4,302
Property ..o 3,386 3,383 3,118
SUTELY . o ot 67 61 61
Total earned premium ............. ... ... $39,023  $37,172  $38,166

The performance of an insurance company is often measured by the combined ratio. The combined
ratio represents the percentage of losses and other expenses that are incurred for each dollar of premium
earned by the company. A combined ratio of under 100% represents an underwriting profit while a
combined ratio of over 100% indicates an underwriting loss. The combined ratio is divided into two
components, the loss ratio (the ratio of losses incurred to premiums earned) and the expense ratio (the
ratio of expenses incurred to premiums earned).

The combined ratio for American Southern decreased from 97.8% in 2000 to a combined ratio of
94.8% in 2001. The loss ratio decreased from 70.4% in 2000 to 66.8% in 2001. During 2001, American
Southern released approximately $1.4 million of redundant reserves related to certain program business
that favorably impacted the loss ratio for 2001. The expense ratio for 2001 is up to 28.0% from 27.4% in
2000. The combined ratio for American Southern for 2000 was 97.8%, up slightly from the 1999 combined
ratio of 95.9%. The loss ratio decreased slightly to 70.4% in 2000 from 70.6% in 1999. The decrease in the
loss ratio was the result of lower than anticipated losses on the personal auto line of business. The expense
ratio for 2000 was 27.4% compared to 25.3% in 1999. The increase in the expense ratio in 2001 and 2000
is a direct result of American Southern’s business structure. The majority of American Southern’s business
is structured in such a way that the agents are rewarded or penalized based upon the loss ratio of the
business they submit to the company. By structuring its business in this manner, American Southern
provides its agents with an economic incentive to place profitable business with the company. As a result
of this arrangement, in periods where losses and the loss ratio decrease, commission and underwriting
expenses increase.
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Association Casualty

The following table summarizes Association Casualty’s premiums and losses (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999(1)
Gross written premiums .. ........veineennnennn..n. $34,648 $24,967 $9,299
Ceded premiums . .. ...oot et (3,692) (2,314) _(775)
Net written premiums .. .........oouiirenneanen.. $30,956 $22,653 $8,524
Net earned premiums. . .........ooiiuiiiinennnna.. $25,711 $20,110 $8,498
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses . ............... 23,613 15,799 6,380
Underwriting eXpenses . ... ......uerrerneunennnennnn.. 8,155(2) 6,410(2)  2,751(2)
Underwriting 10SS . ... ...t $(6,057) $(2,099) $ (633)
LoSS ratio . ..ottt 91.8% 78.5% 75.1%
Expense ratio. ...t 31.7%(2) 31.9%(2)  32.4%(2)
Combined ratio ........................ ...l 123.5% 110.4% _107.5%

(1) Includes results for the period July 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999.

(2) Excludes the interest expense on an intercompany surplus note associated with the acquisition of
Association Casualty.

Gross written premiums at Association Casualty increased $9.7 million or 38.8% during 2001. During
the fourth quarter of 2000, the company began recognizing written premiums on an annualized basis
instead of using the installment method resulting in a significant increase in gross written premiums. The
impact to earned premiums was not significant. In addition, Association Casualty is aggressively increasing
rates on renewal business, in some cases up to 30%. The company has also added premium related to
commercial lines other than workers’ compensation such as general liability, property, and other
commercial coverage to compliment its existing book of business. While Association Casualty currently
writes predominately workers’ compensation insurance in the state of Texas, the company intends to
market itself as a complete commercial lines carrier.

In 2000, Association Casualty began increasing the rates it was charging for renewal business and was
successful in attracting new business. As a result of these efforts, the company was able to increase gross
written premiums. The company also added approximately $0.7 million of written premiums for general
liability, property, and business automobile.

In 2001, the company had net earned premiums of $25.7 million of which 88.6% was workers’
compensation business compared to 94.7% during 2000 as illustrated in the following table.

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, Association Casualty’s earned premiums by
line of business (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999(1)
Workers’ compensation . ................. i, $22,784  $19,051  $8,158
Business automobile . ......... ... .. ... 671 64 -
General liability. . ...... ... 117 5 -
Property . ... 1,001 81 -
Group accident and health ........... ... . ... ... ... .. ... 1,138 909 340
Total earned premium ........... ..ottt $25,711  $20,110  $8,498

(1) Includes results for the period July 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999
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The combined ratio for Association Casualty increased to 123.5% in 2001 from a combined ratio of
110.4% in 2000. The loss ratio increased to 91.8% in 2001 from 78.5% in 2000. The primary reason for the
increase can be attributable to adverse development on prior year losses, specifically accident year 2000.
Additionally, current year losses were reviewed and increased to levels deemed more appropriate by
management. The company continues to be adversely impacted by the liberal interpretation of the workers’
compensation laws in the state of Texas. As the law has matured, factors such as “life time medical” and
the “impairment rating” structure have become significant in contributing to the increased medical cost.
To help mitigate these costs and achieve an underwriting profit, Association Casualty continues to increase
pricing and improve underwriting criteria. The expense ratio decreased from 31.9% in 2000 to 31.7% in
2001. The decline in the expense ratio is primarily attributable to the increase in earned premiums and
only a moderate increase in fixed expenses.

The combined ratio for Association Casualty during 2000 of 110.4% was higher than is desired by
management. The higher than expected losses in 2000 were largely due to negative development stemming
from second and third surgeries on previously closed claims as well as a continuing rise in medical costs.
Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums declined slightly, primarily as a result of the increase in
earned premiums and only a moderate increase in fixed expenses.

Georgia Casualty

The following table summarizes Georgia Casualty’s premiums and losses (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Gross written premiums ... .....ein et $40,966  $35,031  $26,798
Ceded premiums . . ..o oottt (15,702)  (3,925)  (5,928)
Net written premiums .. .......oiin et $25,264  $31,106  $20,870
Net earned premiums . .. ...ttt $25,579  $28,576  $19,403
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses ..................... 17,644 22,192 16,535
Underwriting eXpenses . .. ......uureernernennennennennnnnn. 8,765 10,940 7,950
Underwriting 10SS . ... oot i $ (830) $(4,556) $(5,082)
LSS Tatio . o e e 69.0% 77.7% 85.2%
Expense ratio. ......ooiini i 34.3% 38.3% 41.0%
Combined ratio . .......ovini i 103.3% 116.0% 126.2%

Gross written premiums at Georgia Casualty increased 16.9% or $5.9 million in 2001. The increase in
gross written premiums is mostly attributable to significant rate increases, new business with established
agents in addition to the added premiums by new agency appointments. The increase in ceded premiums
of $11.8 million during 2001 is the result of a 40% quota share reinsurance agreement that the company
put into place in 2001 to allow for premium growth and surplus protection.

During 2000, gross written premiums increased 30.7% or $8.2 million. The increase in premiums in
2000 from 1999 was due to aggressive rate increases on its new and renewal business in addition to the
new management team at Georgia Casualty increasing the agency force through its relationships in the
insurance industry. The decline in ceded premiums during 2000 compared to 1999 was the result of the
discontinuation of the stop-loss reinsurance agreement that the company put into place in 1999.
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The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, Georgia Casualty’s earned premiums by
line of business (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Workers’ compensation . ...............iiiiiiiiiiia... $10,744  $16,741  $13,157
Business automobile .......... ... . . 5,412 4918 2,876
General liability. . ...... .. .. 2,610 2,531 1,251
Property ... 6,813 4,386 2,119
Total earned premium .............ccoiiiiiiiineiinennn... $25,579  $28,576  $19,403

Net earned premiums declined 10.5% or $3.0 million during 2001 primarily due to the quota share
reinsurance agreement discussed previously. As presented in the table above, Georgia Casualty continues
to diversify its book of business into commercial lines other that workers’ compensation, repositioning the
company as a one-stop commercial lines carrier. Furthermore, the company is attempting to spread its
geographical exposure by reducing its concentration in Georgia and expanding in its other key southeastern
states.

The combined ratio for Georgia Casualty decreased from 116.0% in 2000 to 103.3% in 2001. The loss
ratio declined from 77.7% in 2000 to 69.0% in 2001. During 2000, in an effort to strengthen loss reserves
and better position the company to capitalize on market opportunities, a comprehensive review of all loss
reserves and open claims was performed. These initiatives resulted in reserve increases and consequently,
an unusually high loss ratio which accounts for the decline in the loss ratio during 2001. In addition, the
decrease is also attributable to the company’s strict adherence to underwriting discipline and premium rate
increases. The expense ratio decreased from 38.3% in 2000 to 34.3% in 2001 primarily as a result of the
ceding commission the company is receiving from the quota share contract put into place during 2001.

The combined ratio for Georgia Casualty for 2000 decreased to 116.0% from 126.2% in 1999. The loss
ratio declined from 85.2% in 1999 to 77.7% in 2000. The primary reason for the decline was the complete
elimination during the latter part of 1999 of two underwriting programs, the performance of which was
substandard. In addition, the company benefited in 2000 from the increased premium rates that began
during 1999. Also, the mix of business that Georgia Casualty underwrites had changed from one of higher
hazards to low and moderate hazards.

The expense ratio decreased from 41.0% in 1999 to 38.3% in 2000. The decline in the expense ratio

was primarily attributable to the increase in earned premiums associated with the new growth and only a
moderate increase in fixed expenses.

Bankers Fidelity

The following summarizes Bankers Fidelity’s premiums and operating results (dollars in thousands):

Premiums
2001 2000 1999
Medicare supplement . ............ it $38,268  $31,295  $25,822
Other health products. ........ ... .. ... 2,912 2,899 3,206
Life InSurance ... ........ i 14,096 13,445 12,499
Total Premiums .. ..ottt ettt 55,276 47,639 41,527
Investment inCOME . ....... ...t 4,420 5,003 4,763
Total premiums and investment income. ..................... $59,696  $52,642  $46,290




Operating Expenses

2001 2000 1999
Insurance benefits and 10SS€S . .. ..o vt $39,570  $33,452  $28,313
Commissions and underwriting eXpenses ..................... 17,304 15,764 15,216
Total EXPENSES . . ottt e ettt e $56,874  $49,216  $43,529

Premium revenue at Bankers Fidelity for 2001 increased 16.0% or $7.6 million over 2000 results. The
most significant increase in premiums arose in the Medicare supplement line of business, which increased
22.3% during 2001. Bankers Fidelity has continued to expand its market presence throughout the
Southeast, mid-Atlantic Region, especially in Pennsylvania, and in the Western Region. In 2001, the
company added additional Medicare supplemental premium for Pennsylvania of approximately $3.3 mil-
lion. In addition, during 2000 and 2001, Bankers Fidelity implemented rate increases on the Medicare
supplement product, in some cases up to 30%, which are reflected in the current year increases for
premium revenues.

For the year 2000, premium revenue at Bankers Fidelity increased 14.7%, or $6.1 million over 1999
results. The most significant increase in premiums during 2000 was in the Medicare supplement line of
business. The increase in premium revenue from 1999 to 2000 was primarily due to the expansion of the
company’s market presence in the Mid-Atlantic and Western regions in addition to significant rate
increases.

The increase in both “benefits and losses” and “commissions and other expenses” is primarily
attributable to the increase in new business. As a percentage of premiums, benefits and losses were 71.6%
in 2001 compared to 70.2% in 2000. The increase is primarily due to continued aging of the life business
and higher medical trends than expected for the health business. Additionally, the company continues to
implement rate increases on the Medicare supplement line of business to help to mitigate the impact of
higher medical costs.

Insurance benefits and losses at Bankers Fidelity increased 18.2% or $5.1 million during 2000. The
increase in benefits and losses from 1999 to 2000 was directly attributable to the increase in new business.

The company has been successful in keeping operating costs lower, while continuing to add new
business. As a percentage of premiums, commissions and underwriting expenses were 31.3% in 2001
compared to 33.1% in 2000 and 36.6% in 1999.

Investment Income and Realized Gains

Investment income for 2001 of $14.3 million decreased $1.2 million or 7.9% from 2000. The decrease
in investment income is primarily attributable to falling interest rates. The decline in interest rates resulted
in several of the Company’s higher yielding callable fixed income securities to be redeemed by the issuers
prior to maturity. The proceeds received from the early redemption of these fixed income securities was
reinvested at a lower yield. In addition, during 2001, the carrying value of the Company’s investment in
the joint venture with the AAA of the Carolinas, was reduced by $0.2 million to reflect lower than
expected premium production and higher expenses. Also contributing to the decrease in 2001 was a
significant gain in a real estate partnership the Company benefited from during 2000. The investment,
which is accounted for under the equity method, sold several pieces of property resulting in income of
approximately $0.4 million.

Investment income increased 22.2% or $2.8 million in 2000 from 1999. The inclusion of the operating
results of Association Casualty is responsible for $1.5 million of this increase. The Company also benefited
from a significant gain in a real estate partnership discussed previously. This investment generated income
of approximately $0.6 million during 2000. The remaining increase in investment income in 2000 as
compared to 1999 was the result of the Company shifting securities from short-term to longer-term
securities to take advantage of the higher long-term interest rates in the first half of 2000.
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Realized investment gains decreased from $1.9 million in 2000 to $1.7 million in 2001. Management
is continually evaluating the Company’s investment portfolio and will periodically divest appreciated
investments as deemed appropriate.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased from $4.4 million in 2000 to $3.2 million in 2001. In conjunction with the
acquisition of Association Casualty in 1999, the Company entered into a $30.0 million revolving credit
facility with Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia). During 2000, and in the first nine months of 2001, the
Company paid down $7.0 million on the revolver, leaving $19.0 million outstanding under this facility. This
debt, coupled with the $25.0 million in variable rate demand bonds issued during the second quarter of
1999, the proceeds of which were used to pay down the Company’s prior credit facility, bring the total
debt to $44.0 million at December 31, 2001, down from $50.0 million at the end of 2000. In addition, the
base interest rate in 2001, LIBOR, decreased from prevailing LIBOR rates in 2000. The interest rate on a
portion of the revolver and the bonds is variable and is tied to LIBOR. The reduction in debt, along with
decreasing interest rates accounts for the decrease in 2001. On March 21, 2001, the Company entered into
an interest rate swap agreement for a notional principal amount of $15.0 million with Wachovia to hedge
its interest rate risk on a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility. The
interest rate swap was effective on April 2, 2001 and matures on June 30, 2004. The Company has agreed
to pay a fixed rate of 5.1% and receive 3-month LIBOR until maturity.

Other Expenses

Other expenses (commissions, underwriting expenses, and other expenses) increased $3.5 million or
7.6% in 2001. The increase in other expenses is due to the following items: First, beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2000, Association Casualty began recognizing written premiums on an annualized basis instead
of using the installment method thus increasing commissions and premium taxes in conjunction with
written premiums. In 2001, Association Casualty also experienced an increase in overall operating expenses
as it sought to diversify into commercial lines of business other than workers’ compensation. In addition,
Bankers Fidelity’s commissions have increased significantly as a result of additional new business. Lastly,
during 2000, the bad debt reserve was reduced by $0.5 million due to improvements as to the collectibility
of certain receivables. Partially offsetting this increase in other expenses was a significant reduction in
commission expense American Southern pays on one of its larger accounts in addition to the ceding
commission Georgia Casualty is receiving from the quota share contract. On a consolidated basis, as a
percentage of earned premiums, other expenses decreased from 34.1% in 2000 to 33.6% in 2001.

The increase in other expenses in 2000 as compared to 1999 was primarily attributable to the
inclusion of the operating results of Association Casualty.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The major cash needs of the Company are for the payment of claims and operating expenses,
maintaining adequate statutory capital and surplus levels, and meeting debt service requirements. The
Company’s primary sources of cash are written premiums, investment income and the sale and maturity of
invested assets. In addition, the Company has additional borrowing capacity under its revolving credit
facility. The Company believes that, within each subsidiary, total invested assets will be sufficient to satisfy
all policy liabilities. Cash flows at the parent company are derived from dividends, management fees, and
tax sharing payments from the subsidiaries. The cash needs of the parent company are for the payment of
operating expenses, the acquisition of capital assets and debt service requirements.

Dividend payments to the Company by its insurance subsidiaries are subject to annual limitations and
are restricted to the greater of 10% of statutory surplus or statutory earnings before recognizing realized
investment gains of the individual insurance subsidiaries. At December 31, 2001, the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries had statutory surplus of $84.7 million.
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The Company provides certain administrative, purchasing and other services for each of its
subsidiaries. The amount charged to and paid by the subsidiaries was $8.4 million, $7.6 million, and
$6.7 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. In addition, the Company has a formal tax-sharing
agreement with each of its insurance subsidiaries. A net total of $1.3 million, $1.0 million and $2.0 million
was paid to the Company under the tax sharing agreement in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.
Dividends were paid to Atlantic American by one of its subsidiaries totaling $4.6 million in 2001, and
$3.6 million in 2000 and 1999. As a result of the Company’s tax loss carryforwards, which totaled
approximately $30.0 million at December 31, 2001, it is anticipated that the tax sharing agreement will
provide the Company with additional funds with which to meet its cash flow obligations.

The Company is a party to a five-year revolving credit facility (“the Revolving Credit Facility”’) with
Wachovia that provides for borrowings up to $30.0 million. The interest rate on the borrowings under this
facility may be fixed, at the Company’s option, for a period of one, three, six or twelve months and is
based upon the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin, 2.50% at
December 31, 2001. The margin varies based upon the Company’s leverage ratio (debt to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), as defined under the facility agreements) and
ranges from 1.75% to 3.75%. Interest on the Revolving Credit Facility is currently payable quarterly. The
Revolving Credit Facility provides for the payment of all of the outstanding principal balance at June 30,
2004 with no required principal payments prior to that time. The interest rate including the applicable
margin on this facility at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 6.35% and 9.12%, respectively.

The Company also has outstanding $25.0 million of Series 1999, Variable Rate Demand Bonds (the
“Bonds”) due July 1, 2009 issued through a private placement. The Bonds, which are redeemable at the
Company’s option, pay a variable interest rate that approximates 30-day LIBOR. The Bonds are backed by
a letter of credit issued by Wachovia Bank, N.A., which is automatically renewable on a monthly basis
until thirteen months after such time as Wachovia gives the Company notice of its option not to renew the
letter of credit. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption upon termination of the letter of credit, if
an alternative letter of credit facility is not secured. The Company expects that it would be able to replace
the letter of credit facility within the prescribed period if Wachovia should give notice of its intention not
to renew the existing facility. The cost of the letter of credit and its associated fees are 2.50% making the
effective rate on the Bonds LIBOR plus 2.50% at December 31, 2001. The interest on the Bonds is
payable monthly and the letter of credit fees are payable quarterly. The interest rate on the Bonds, along
with the related fees, at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 4.63% and 9.15%, respectively. The Bonds do
not require the repayment of any principal prior to maturity, except as provided above.

The Company is required, under both instruments, to maintain certain covenants including, among
others, ratios that relate funded debt to total capitalization and interest coverage. The Company must also
comply with limitations on capital expenditures and additional debt obligations.

Effective December 31, 2001, the Revolving Credit Facility and letter of credit were both amended by
Wachovia. The amendment establishes new covenants pertaining to ratios related to interest coverage and
eliminates funded debt to EBITDA except for use in determining the applicable margin. In addition, the
Company is required to consolidate the Revolving Credit Facility and the Bonds into a term loan (“Term
Loan”), effective on April 2, 2002, which will mature June 30, 2004. The Company has notified the
holders of the Bonds that they will be redeemed as of April 2, 2002. The Company must repay the
principal of the Term Loan in annual installments in the amount of $2.0 million on or before December 31
of 2002 and 2003, together with one final installment at maturity in 2004. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company was in compliance with all debt covenants, as revised on December 31, 2001.

The Company intends to repay its obligations under the Term Loan using dividend and tax sharing
payments from its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company believes that, if necessary, at maturity, the Term
Loan can be refinanced with the current lender, although there can be no assurance of the terms or
conditions of such a refinancing.

The Company also has outstanding $15.9 million of preferred stock issued to affiliates. The preferred
stock accrues a dividend of 9.0% per year, and at December 31, 2001 the Company had accrued but
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unpaid dividends on the preferred stock totaling $7.2 million. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $15.8 million in 2001, $16.7 million in 2000 and $5.4 million in 1999. Cash and short-term
investments at December 31, 2001 were $68.8 million and are believed to be more than sufficient to meet
the Company’s near-term needs.

The Company believes that the cash flows it receives from its subsidiaries and, if needed, additional
borrowings from banks and affiliates of the Company, will enable the Company to meet its liquidity
requirements for the foreseeable future. Management is not aware of any current recommendations by
regulatory authorities which, if implemented, would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
liquidity, capital resources or operations.

In 1999, the NAIC completed a process to codify statutory accounting practices for certain insurance
enterprises (“Codification’””). The Company adopted Codification on January 1, 2001. The cumulative
effect of this accounting change increased statutory surplus by approximately $1.4 million. The most
significant increase to statutory surplus was the recognition of deferred taxes. The Codification did not
impact the Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 133 requires the recognition of the fair value of all derivative instruments
on the balance sheet and establishes specific accounting methods for hedges. The Company adopted SFAS
No. 133 and the corresponding amendments under SFAS No. 138 on January 1, 2001. The adoption did
not have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also includes guidance
on the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other tangible assets arising from business
combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 prohibits the amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Under the new rules, goodwill (and intangible assets deemed
to have indefinite lives) will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in
accordance with the statement. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their remaining
useful lives. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had unamortized goodwill of $18.8 million all of
which will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related to
goodwill was $0.8 million, $0.8 million, and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000,
and 1999, respectively. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. Goodwill shall be
tested for impairment using the two-step process prescribed in SFAS No. 142. The first step is a screen
for potential impairment, while the second step measures the amount of the impairment, if any. Any
impairment loss that is required to be recognized when adopting SFAS No. 142 will be reflected as a
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle during the first quarter of 2002. The impact of
adopting SFAS No. 142 on the Company’s financial statements has not yet been determined; however, it
could have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations in 2002.

In August 2001, SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (effective for fiscal
periods commencing after June 15, 2002) and SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets” (effective for fiscal periods commencing after December 15, 2001) were issued.
SFAS No. 143 requires that entities recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. SFAS No. 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived
assets to be disposed of. The statement superseded SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”” and among other factors, establishes criteria
beyond that previously specified in Statement 121 to determine when a long-lived asset is to be considered
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as held for sale. The Company believes that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 and SFAS No. 144 will not
have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Impact of Inflation

Insurance premiums are established before the amount of losses and loss adjustment expenses, or the
extent to which inflation may affect such losses and expenses, are known. Consequently, the Company
attempts, in establishing its premiums, to anticipate the potential impact of inflation. If, for competitive
reasons premiums cannot be increased to anticipate inflation, this cost would be absorbed by the Company.
Inflation also affects the rate of investment return on the Company’s investment portfolio with a
corresponding effect on investment income.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate and Market Risk

Due to the nature of the Company’s business it is exposed to both interest rate and market risk.
Changes in interest rates, which represent the largest risk factor affecting the Company, may result in
changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments, cash flows and interest income and expense. To
mitigate this risk, the Company invests in high quality bonds and avoids investing in securities that are
directly linked to loans or mortgages.

The Company is also subject to risk from changes in equity prices. Atlantic American owned
$14.4 million of common stock of Wachovia Corporation at December 31, 2001. A 10% decrease in the
share price of the common stock of Wachovia Corporation would result in a decrease of approximately
$0.9 million to shareholders’ equity.

The interest rate on the Company’s debt is tied to LIBOR. During 2001, the Company entered into
an interest rate swap agreement with Wachovia Bank, N.A. to hedge its interest rate risk on a portion of
the outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility. (See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements). A 100 basis point increase in the LIBOR would result in an additional $0.3 million
in interest expense.

The table below summarizes the estimated fair values that might result from changes in interest rates
of the Company’s bond portfolio:

+200bp +100bp Fair value —100bp —200bp
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,2001 ............... $122,347  $128,168  $133,470 $138,642  $141,788
December 31,2000............... $148,749  $154,357  $159,404  $163,215  $166,020

The Company is also subject to risk from changes in equity prices. The table below summarizes the
effect that a change in share price would have on the value of the Company’s equity portfolio, including
the Company’s single largest equity holding.

+20% +10% Fair Value —10% —20%
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2001

Investment in Wachovia Corporation . ... $17,220 $15,785  $14,350  $12,915 $11,480
Other equity holdings . ................ 48,334 44,306 40,278 36,250 32,222
Total equity holdings.................. $65,554  $60,091 $54,628  $49,165  $43,702
December 31, 2000

Investment in Wachovia Corporation .... $17,005 $15,588 $14,171 $12,754  $11,337
Other equity holdings ................. 35,729 32,751 29,774 26,797 23,819
Total equity holdings.................. $52,734  $48,339  $43,945  $39,551  $35,156
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The interest rate on the Company’s debt is variable and tied to LIBOR. The table below summarizes
the effect that changes in interest rates would have on the Company’s interest expense. The impact of the
changes in interest rates at December 31, 2001 includes the impact of the interest rate swap agreement the
Company entered into on March 21, 2001, discussed previously.

Interest Expense Interest Expense
+200bp +100bp Debt —100bp —200bp
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,2001 ....................... $580 $290 $44,000  $(290) $(580)
December 31,2000 . ... ouoreea $930 $465  $46,500  $(465)  $(930)

Deferred Taxes

At December 31, 2001, the Company had a net deferred tax asset of $2.3 million, comprised of a
deferred tax asset of $19.7 million, a deferred tax liability of $11.8 million and a valuation allowance of
$5.6 million. The valuation allowance was established against deferred tax assets relating to net operating
loss carryforwards that might not be realized.

Until the end of 1999, the Company established a full valuation allowance against these deferred
income tax benefits as they were not considered realizable from expected future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences. The Company believed that it was more likely than not that the net
deferred income tax benefits would not be realized through future taxable income prior to the expiration
dates of net operating loss carryforwards. However, with the acquisition of Association Casualty and
several years of profitability, the Company believes it is now more likely than not that a portion of its net
deferred income tax benefits relating to net operating loss carryforwards scheduled to expire between 2006
and 2010 will be realized based on future taxable income. Management also can and would implement
tax-planning strategies to prevent these carryforwards from expiring. As of December 31, 2001, a valuation
allowance has been established for deferred income tax benefits relating primarily to net operating loss
carryforwards scheduled to expire between 2002 and 2003. Since the Company’s ability to generate taxable
income from operations and utilize available tax-planning strategies in the near term is dependent upon
various factors, many of which are beyond management’s control, management believes that it is more
likely than not that the deferred income tax benefits relating to these carryforwards will not be realized.
However, realization of the remaining deferred income tax benefits will be assessed periodically based on
the Company’s current and anticipated results of operations and amounts could increase or decrease in the
near term if estimates of future taxable income change. The Company has a formal tax-sharing agreement
and files a consolidated income tax return with its subsidiaries.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Atlantic American Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ATLANTIC AMERICAN
CORPORATION (a Georgia corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001
and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements and the
schedules referred to below are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Atlantic American Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001
and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The Schedules I, II, III, IV and VI listed in Part IV, Item 14 are presented for purposes of
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and are not part of the basic financial
statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and in our opinion, fairly state in all material respects the financial data
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 25, 2002
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2001

2000

(Dollars in thousands,
except share and per
share data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents, including short-term investments of $39,151 and
$15,013 in 2001 and 2000, respectively .. .......ovtneeiiie $ 68,846 $ 31,914
InvestmentS . . ..o 199,132 215,893
Receivables:
ReINSUIANCE . . ..ot e 48,946 39,088
Other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,119 and $1,269 in 2001
and 2000, respectively ... ...t 39,055 37,261
Deferred Income taxes, NEt .. ... ..ottt 2,294 3,839
Deferred acquisition COSES . . ... v vttt et ettt et e 24,681 23,398
Other ASSeTS . ottt 10,241 4,886
Goodwill, net of amortization of $802 and $798 in 2001 and 2000, respectively . . .. 18,824 19,498
Total ASSELS . . o\ttt $412,019  $375,777
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Insurance reserves and policyholder funds ............. ... .. ... ... ... $243,199  $225,164
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . ... ...t 37,294 20,873
Debt payable. . ... ..o 44,000 46,500
Total lHabilities . . ... ..o e 324,493 292,537
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par, 4,000,000 shares authorized,;
Series B preferred, 134,000 shares issued and outstanding, $13,400 redemption
VAl ot 134 134
Series C preferred, 25,000 shares issued and outstanding, $2,500 redemption
ValUE .o 25 25
Common stock, $1 par, 30,000,000 shares authorized; 21,412,138 shares issued in
2001 and 2000 and 21,245,711 shares outstanding in 2001 and 21,157,250
shares outstanding in 2000 .. ........ .. ... .. 21,412 21,412
Additional paid-in capital ......... ... . 56,606 56,997
Retained earnings (deficit) ......... .. i 1,097 (1,248)
Accumulated other comprehensive income. . ...........couiirninenennnn... 8,748 6,820
Treasury stock, at cost, 166,427 shares in 2001 and 254,888 shares in 2000 .. ... (496) (900)
Total shareholders” equity .. ... ..ottt et 87,526 83,240
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ............ ... ... $412,019  $375,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

Revenue:
Insurance premiums ... ......ovuiin e $145,589 $133,497 $107,594
Investment iNCOME . ... ...ttt 14,317 15,552 12,724
Other INCOME . . . . .ot i e 1,694 1,287 1,172
Realized investment gains, net ............. ... ..., 1,708 1,922 2,831
Total TevenUE. . . ..ot 163,308 152,258 124,321
Benefits and expenses:
Insurance benefits and losses incurred . ............. ... ....... 106,896 97,628 78,162
Commissions and underwriting eXpenses ...................... 37,317 36,677 29,713
Interest eXpense. ..o vt e 3,234 4,408 2,819
Other .o 11,608 8,789 9,705
Total benefits and expenses . ........... ..., 159,055 147,502 120,399
Income before income tax provision (benefit) ........... 4,253 4,756 3,922
Income tax provision (benefit) .............. ... ... ... ... ...... 656 1,124 (6,988)
Net income before preferred stock dividends ............ 3,597 3,632 10,910
Preferred stock dividends . ........... ... ... ... .. . (1,431) (1,206) (1,206)
Net income applicable to common stock ................ $ 2,166 $ 2,426 $ 9,704
Basic earnings per common share..................oveiinn.... $ .10 $ 12 $ 48
Diluted earnings per common share ............................ $ .10 $ 12 $ 46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other
Preferred Common Paid-In (Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Deficit) Income Stock Total
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)
Balance, December 31, 1998.............. $134  $19,406 $50,406 $(15,213) $ 28,786  $(1,302) $ 82,217
Comprehensive loss:
Netincome ..............cvvvn.n.. — — — 10,910 — — 10,910
Decrease in unrealized investment gains — — — — (16,731) —  (16,731)
Deferred income tax attributable to
other comprehensive loss . .......... — — — — (4,219) — (4,219)
Total comprehensive loss............. (10,040)
Dividends accrued on preferred stock ...... — — (1,206) — — — (1,206)
Purchase of 213,392 shares for treasury. . ... — — — — — (779) (779)
Issuance of 113,608 shares for employee
benefit plans and stock options . ......... — — — (255) — 528 273
Issuance of 2,006,385 shares for acquisition
of Association Casualty Insurance
Company ........cooiiiiiiii — 2,006 6,477 — — — 8,483
Balance, December 31, 1999.............. 134 21,412 55,677 (4,558) 7,836 (1,553) 78,948
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .............cooouunn. — — — 3,632 — — 3,632
Decrease in unrealized investment
GAINS . o vttt — — — — (1,563) — (1,563)
Deferred income tax benefit attributable
to other comprehensive loss......... — — — — 547 — 547
Total comprehensive income . ......... 2,616
Issuance of 25,000 shares of preferred
stock. ... .. 25 — 2,475 — — — 2,500
Dividends accrued on preferred stock ...... — — (1,206) — — — (1,206)
Compensation expense related to stock
Grants . ..ot — — 51 — — — 51
Purchase of 33,206 shares for treasury. .. ... — — — — — (79) (79)
Issuance of 163,670 shares for employee
benefit plans and stock options .......... — — — (322) — 732 410
Balance, December 31, 2000.............. 159 21,412 56,997 (1,248) 6,820 (900) 83,240
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .........cccvvvininin... — — — 3,597 — — 3,597
Increase in unrealized investment gains — — — — 3,498 — 3,498
Fair value adjustment to interest rate
SWAD « ottt — — — — (532) — (532)
Deferred income tax expense
attributable to other comprehensive
INCOME . ottt — — — — (1,038) — (1,038)
Total comprehensive income . ......... — — — — — — 5,525
Dividends accrued on preferred stock — — (436) (995) — — (1,431)
Compensation expense related to stock
grants ... — — 45 — — — 45
Purchase of 5,999 shares for treasury. . ... — — — — — (11) (11)
Issuance of 94,460 shares for employee
benefit plans and stock options ........ — — — (257) — 415 158
Balance, December 31, 2001 .............. $159  $21,412  $56,606 $ 1,097 $ 8,748 $ (496) $ 87,526

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net INCOME . o oottt e e e e $ 3597 $ 3,632 $ 10910

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs . ..................... 16,892 15,804 11,947
Acquisition costs deferred ........... .. ... ... L (18,175)  (18,804)  (14,003)
Realized investment gains, net ............. ... ... ... ... (1,708) (1,922) (2,831)
Increase in insurance reserves and policyholder funds ............ 18,035 20,019 14,036
Compensation expense related to stock grants. .................. 45 51 —
Depreciation and amortization. .. ........ ... ..., 1,680 1,744 1,435
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ........................ 507 1,007 (6,997)
Increase in receivables, net ............. .. .. ... ... (12,402) (8,584) (8,404)
Increase in other liabilities. .. .......... .. .. ... . ... 12,681 3,617 73
Other, net. . ... (5,305) 142 (768)
Net cash provided by operating activities. .. ...................... 15,847 16,706 5,398
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from investments sold. ... ........ ... ... .. .. .. ...... 39,122 3,447 8,482
Proceeds from investments matured, called or redeemed.......... 94,098 11,877 35,594
Investments purchased ............ ... .. i (109,249)  (31,290)  (53,211)
Additions to property and equipment .. .............. i, (930) (619) (829)
Acquisition of American Independent, net of $1,946 cash acquired — — 198
Acquisition of Association Casualty, net of $6,270 cash acquired. . . (128) (94)  (18,205)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .............. 22,913 (16,679)  (27,971)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of bank financing ...................... — — 51,000
Proceeds from issuance of Series C Preferred Stock ............. 750 1,750 —
Preferred stock dividends . ......... ... ... ... .. . ... (225) — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options........................ 158 410 273
Purchase of treasury shares ............... ... .. ... ... ...... (11) (79) (779)
Repayments of debt ......... .. ... .. ... .. . . . (2,500) (4,500)  (26,000)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ................ (1,828) (2,419) 24,494
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. . ... 36,932 (2,392) 1,921
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................. 31,914 34,306 32,385
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...................... $ 68,846 $ 31914 $ 34,306
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest . .. ...t $ 3394 § 4170 $ 2,510
Cash paid for income taxes . ..., $ 176 $ 166 $ 131

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

38



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”’) which, as to insurance
companies, differ from the statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by regulatory authorities.
These financial statements include the accounts of Atlantic American Corporation (the “Company”) and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had five insurance subsidiaries, including Bankers Fidelity Life
Insurance Company (“Bankers Fidelity””), American Southern Insurance Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, American Safety Insurance Company (together known as “American Southern”), Association
Casualty Insurance Company (“ACIC”) and Georgia Casualty & Surety Company (“Georgia Casualty”),
in addition to two non-risk bearing subsidiaries, Association Risk Management General Agency, Inc.
(“ARMGA”) and Self-Insurance Administrators, Inc. (“SIA, Inc.”). ACIC and ARMGA (together
known as “Association Casualty”’) were acquired on July 1, 1999. The results of operations of Association
Casualty are included in the consolidated results of operations since the date of acquisition.

Premium Revenue and Cost Recognition

Life insurance premiums are recognized as revenues when due, whereas accident and health
premiums are recognized over the premium paying period. Benefits and expenses are associated with
premiums as they are earned so as to result in recognition of profits over the lives of the contracts. This
association is accomplished by the provision of a future policy benefits reserve and the deferral and
subsequent amortization of the costs of acquiring business, “deferred policy acquisition costs” (principally
commissions, premium taxes, advertising and other expenses of issuing policies). Traditional life insurance
and long-duration health insurance deferred policy acquisition costs are amortized over the estimated
premium-paying period of the related policies using assumptions consistent with those used in computing
policy benefit reserves. The deferred policy acquisition costs for property and casualty insurance and short-
duration health insurance are amortized over the effective period of the related insurance policies. Deferred
policy acquisition costs are expensed when such costs are deemed not to be recoverable from future
premiums (for traditional life and long-duration health insurance) and from the related unearned
premiums and investment income (for property and casualty and short-duration health insurance).

Property and casualty insurance premiums are recognized as revenue ratably over the contract period.
The Company provides for insurance benefits and losses on accident, health, and casualty claims based
upon estimates of projected ultimate losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill is amortized over a period of fifteen to forty years using the straight-line method. The
Company periodically evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate that the
remaining estimated useful life of goodwill may warrant revision. Should factors indicate that goodwill be
evaluated for possible impairment, the Company will compare the recoverability of goodwill to a projection
of the acquired companies’ undiscounted cash flow over the estimated remaining life of the goodwill in
assessing whether the goodwill is recoverable. (See Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards
provided below).
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Investments

All of the Company’s debt and equity securities are classified as available for sale and are carried at
market value. Mortgage loans, policy and student loans, and real estate are carried at historical cost. Other
invested assets are comprised of investments in limited partnerships, limited liability companies, and real
estate joint ventures; those which are publicly traded are carried at estimated market value and those for
which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence (‘“equity investees”) are accounted for
using the equity method. If the value of a common stock, preferred stock, other invested asset, or publicly
traded bond declines below its cost or amortized cost, and the decline is considered to be other than
temporary, a realized loss is recorded to reduce the carrying value of the investment to its estimated net
realizable value, which becomes the new cost basis. Premiums and discounts related to investments are
amortized or accreted over the life of the related investment as an adjustment to yield using the effective
interest method. Dividends and interest income are recognized when earned or declared.

The cost of securities sold is based on specific identification. Unrealized gains (losses) in the value of
invested assets, are accounted for as a direct increase (decrease) in accumulated other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity, net of deferred tax and, accordingly, have no effect on net income.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes represent the expected future tax consequences when the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities are recovered or paid. They arise from differences between the financial reporting and
tax basis of assets and liabilities and are adjusted for changes in tax laws and tax rates as those changes
are enacted. The provision for income taxes represents the total amount of income taxes due related to the
current year, plus the change in deferred taxes during the year.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share are based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per common share are based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during each period, plus common shares calculated for stock
options outstanding using the treasury stock method and assumed conversion of the Series B and C
Preferred Stock, if dilutive. Unless otherwise indicated, earnings per common share amounts are presented
on a diluted basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and investments in short-term, highly liquid
securities which have original maturities of three months or less from date of purchase.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 133 requires the recognition of the fair value of all derivative instruments
on the balance sheet and establishes specific accounting methods for hedges. The Company adopted SFAS
No. 133 and the corresponding amendments under SFAS No. 138 on January 1, 2001. The adoption did
not have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also includes guidance
on the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other tangible assets arising from business
combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 prohibits the amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Under the new rules, goodwill (and intangible assets deemed
to have indefinite lives) will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in
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accordance with the statement. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their remaining
useful lives. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had unamortized goodwill of $18,824 all of which
will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related to goodwill was
$802, $798, and $604 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The Company
will adopt SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. Goodwill shall be tested for impairment using the two-step
process prescribed in SFAS No. 142. The first step is a screen for potential impairment, while the second
step measures the amount of the impairment, if any. Any impairment loss that is required to be recognized
when adopting SFAS No. 142 will be reflected as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
during the first quarter of 2002. The impact of adopting SFAS No. 142 on the Company’s financial
statements has not yet been determined; however, it could have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations in 2002.

In August 2001, SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (effective for fiscal
periods commencing after June 15, 2002) and SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets” (effective for fiscal periods commencing after December 15, 2001) were issued.
SFAS No. 143 requires that entities recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. SFAS No. 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived
assets to be disposed of. The statement superseded SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”” and among other factors, establishes criteria
beyond that previously specified in Statement 121 to determine when a long-lived asset is to be considered
as held for sale. The Company believes that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 and SFAS No. 144 will not
have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
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Note 2. Investments

Investments are comprised of the following:

2001
Gross Gross
Market Unrealized Unrealized Amortized
Value Gains Losses Cost
Bonds:
U. S. Treasury Securities and Obligations of

U. S. Government Corporations and Agencies . ... ... $ 72875 $ 1,164 $ 136 $ 71,847
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . ...... 4,317 71 57 4,303
Corporate securities. .. ............................ 47,713 790 802 47,725
Mortgage-backed securities (government guaranteed) . . 8,565 198 — 8,367

133,470 2,223 995 132,242
Common and preferred stocks ........................ 54,628 14,640 1,670 41,658
Other invested assets . ................. . oiuiinaa... 4,854 — 208 5,062
Mortgage loans (estimated fair value of $4,126) ........ 3,421 — — 3,421
Policy and student loans . ............................ 2,713 — — 2,713
Real estate .......... ... ... .. . .. 46 — — 46
Investments ........... ... ... ... iiiiiiiin... 199,132 16,863 2,873 185,142
Short-term investments . ............................. 39,151 — — 39,151
Total investments . ................................ $238,283  $16,863 $2,873 $224,293
2000
Gross Gross
Market Unrealized Unrealized Amortized
Value Gains Losses Cost
Bonds:
U. S. Treasury Securities and Obligations of U. S.

Government Corporations and Agencies ............ $111,198 $ 608 $1,517 $112,107
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ......... 4,088 37 2 4,053
Corporate SeCurities ... ........ovvienernenenann.. 37,752 563 921 38,110
Mortgage-backed securities (government guaranteed) .. 6,366 71 9 6,304

159,404 1,279 2,449 160,574

Common and preferred stocks ........................ 43,945 14,566 2,730 32,109
Other invested assets .. ..., 5,862 — 174 6,036
Mortgage loans (estimated fair value of $4,040) ......... 3,538 — — 3,538
Policy and student loans ............................. 3,098 — — 3,098
Realestate .......... .. 0o, 46 — — 46
Investments . ...........coiuiiiiiii i 215,893 15,845 5,353 205,401
Short-term investments . ..., 15,013 — — 15,013
Total investments . ................. ... ... $230,906  $15,845 $5,353 $220,414

Bonds and cash having an amortized cost of $15,925 and $16,187 were on deposit with insurance
regulatory authorities at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, in accordance with statutory
requirements.
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The amortized cost and carrying value of bonds and short-term investments at December 31,

2001 by

contractual maturity are as follows. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Market Amortized
Value Cost
Due in one year or less. . ...... ...t e $ 58,033 $ 57,805
Due after one year through fiveyears.......... .. ... ... ... .. ... . . ... 36,490 36,167
Due after five years through tenyears ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 31,884 31,199
Due after ten years . ... ...ttt e 30,052 30,341
Varying maturities . . ... ... ... L e 16,162 15,881
Totals . ... e $172,621  $171,393
Investment income was earned from the following sources:
2001 2000 1999
Bonds . ... $10,530 $10,882 $ 8,447
Common and preferred stocks . .......... ... ... 2,438 2,470 2,388
Mortgage loans .. ......coit i 323 333 352
CDs and commercial paper .. ...ttt 1,071 849 933
Other .. (45) 1,018 604
Total investment INCOME . ... ... vttt e 14,317 15,552 12,724
Less investment XPenSes . .. .vvv vttt ettt (176) (232) (290)
Net investment iNCOME . ... ..ottt et et $14,141  $15,320 $12,434
A summary of realized investment gains (losses) follows:
2001
Other
Stocks Bonds Invested Assets Total
GalNs . ..o $1,189  $927 $ — $2,116
L0SSeS ..ot e (289) (27) (92) (408)
Total realized investment gains (losses) net ................ $ 900  $900 $(92) $1,708
2000
Other
Stocks Bonds Invested Assets Total
GainS .ot $1,907 $ 52 $ — $1,959
LOSSeS . o (11) (26) — (37)
Total realized investment gains (losses) net ............... $1,896 $ 26 $ — $1,922
1999
Other
Stocks Bonds Invested Assets Total
GainS ..o $2,526 $ 10 $585 $3,121
L0SSeS .« v vt (52)  (238) — (290)
Total realized investment gains (losses) net .............. $2,474  $(228) $585 $2.831
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Proceeds from the sale of common and preferred stocks, bonds and other investments are as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Common and preferred stocks........... ... .. ... ... ... $18,194  $2,595  $5,960
Bonds . ... 19,717 — 1,379
Student 10ans . .. ...t 385 651 519
Other InVeStMents . ... ...ttt e e 826 201 624
Total proceeds . .....ooii it $39,122  $3,447  $8,482

The Company’s investment in the common stock of Wachovia Corporation exceeds 10% of
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2001. The carrying value of this investment at December 31, 2001
was $14,350 with a cost basis of $3,579. The Company’s bond portfolio included 96% investment grade
securities at December 31, 2001 as defined by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners
(“NAIC”).

Note 3. Insurance Reserves and Policyholder Funds

The following table presents the Company’s reserves for life, accident, health and property and
casualty losses as well as loss adjustment expenses.

Amount of Insurance

in Force
2001 2000 2001 2000
Future policy benefits
Life insurance policies:
Ordinary .......ccoviiniiiiniii e $ 34213 $ 31,542 $262,891  $253,721
Mass market ... ....... ... ... . ... ... ...... 7,102 7,529 13,146 12,250
Individual annuities . ...................... 843 855 — —
42,158 39,926  $276,037  $265,971
Accident and health insurance policies ......... 2,197 2,180
44,355 42,106
Unearned premiums. ..........oveuuennnnn .. 51,025 45,421
Lossesand claims .......................... 143,515 133,220
Other policy liabilities ... .................... 4,304 4,417
Total policy liabilities ..................... $243,199  $225,164

Annualized premiums for accident and health insurance policies were $44,763 and $39,361 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Future Policy Benefits

Liabilities for life insurance future policy benefits are based upon assumed future investment yields,
mortality rates, and withdrawal rates after giving effect to possible risks of adverse deviation. The assumed
mortality and withdrawal rates are based upon the Company’s experience. The interest rates assumed for
life, accident and health are generally: (i) 2.5% to 5.5% for issues prior to 1977, (ii) 7% graded to 5.5%
for 1977 through 1979 issues, (iii) 9% for 1980 through 1987 issues, and (iv) 5% to 7% for 1988 and later
issues.

Loss and Claim Reserves

Loss and claim reserves represent estimates of projected ultimate losses and are based upon:
(a) management’s estimate of ultimate liability and claim adjusters’ evaluations for unpaid claims reported
prior to the close of the accounting period, (b) estimates of incurred but not reported claims based on past
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experience, and (c) estimates of loss adjustment expenses. The estimated liability is continually reviewed
by management and independent consulting actuaries and updated with changes to the estimated liability
recorded in the statement of operations in the year in which such changes are known.

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is summarized as follows:

2001 2000
Balance at January 1 ...... ... ... $133,220  $126,556
Less: Reinsurance recoverables ............. .. ... i, (38,851)  (38,759)
Net balance at January 1 ....... ... ... ... .. i 94,369 87,797
Incurred related to:
CUITENT YOAT . . v\ vttt ettt e e ettt e 108,068 102,336
Prior Years. . .. ..ot (2,415) (6,085)
Total incurred . . ... . 105,653 96,251
Paid related to:
CUITENT YEAT . o o ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e et 59,506 54,313
Prior Years. . ..ot 44,730 35,366
Total paid . ... ..o 104,236 89,679

Net balance at December 31
Plus: Reinsurance recoverables

...................................... 95,786 94,369
..................................... 47,729 38,851

.......................................... $143,515  $133,220

Balance at December 31

Following is a reconciliation of total incurred claims to total insurance benefits and losses incurred:

2001 2000
Total incurred Claims . .. ... . .t $105,653 $ 96,251
State residual pool refunds and adjustments to loss portfolio arrangements . ...... (150) (59)
Cash surrender value and matured endowments . . .......... ... ..., 1,393 1,436
Total insurance benefits and losses incurred . ....................... $106,896 $ 97,628

Note 4. Reinsurance

In accordance with general practice in the insurance industry, portions of the life, property and
casualty insurance written by the Company are reinsured; however, the Company remains contingently
liable with respect to reinsurance ceded should any reinsurer be unable to meet its obligations.
Approximately 93% of the reinsurance receivables are due from three reinsurers as of December 31, 2001.
Reinsurance receivables of $24,215 are with General Reinsurance Corporation, rated “AAA” by Standard
& Poor’s and “A++" (Superior) by A.M. Best, $2,271 are with First Colony Life Insurance Company,
rated “AA” by Standard & Poor’s and “A++" (Superior) by A.M. Best, and $19,099 are with
Pennsylvania Manufacturers Association Insurance Company, rated “A—"" (Excellent) by A.M. Best.
Allowances for uncollectible amounts are established against reinsurance receivables, if appropriate.
Premiums assumed of $22,708, $25,439, and $24,903 in 2001, 2000, and 1999 respectively, include a state
contract with premiums of $14,054, $17,198, and $15,064. The contract premiums represent 9.7%, 12.9%
and 14.0% of net premiums earned for the years ended 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The following
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table reconciles premiums written to premiums earned and summarizes the components of insurance
benefits and losses incurred.

2001 2000 1999
Direct premiums written ............... . ..., $153,743  $130,089 $ 97,909
Plus — premiums assumed ............... ... ... 22,708 25,439 24,903
Less —premiums ceded. . ........ ... i (25,399)  (10,916)  (13,189)
Net premiums written . ...............oiuiriininenan .. 151,052 144,612 109,623
Change in unearned premiums ................coveun.... (11,889)  (11,408) (1,802)
Change in unearned premiums ceded..................... 6,426 293 (227)
Net change in unearned premiums..................... (5,463)  (11,115) (2,029)
Net premiums earned . ................. ..., $145,589  $133,497  $107,594
Provision for benefits and losses incurred .. ................ $132,724  $107,340 $ 88,848
Reinsurance loss recoveries .. ............ooouiininn.... (25,828) (9,712)  (10,686)
Insurance benefits and losses incurred .................... $106,896 $97,628 $ 78,162
Components of reinsurance receivables are as follows:
2001 2000
Receivable on unpaid 10SSES . .. ..ottt $47,729  $38,851
Receivable on paid 10SSES ... .. ..ottt 1,217 237
$48,946  $39,088

Note 5. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the differences between income taxes computed at the federal statutory income tax
rate and the provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Federal income tax provision at statutory rate of 35% ............ $1,489 $1,665 $ 1,373
Tax exempt interest and dividends received deductions ........... (469) (484) (400)
Other permanent differences . ............. ... ... ... .. ...... 314 363 —
Change in asset valuation allowance due to:
Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards ................ — — (973)
Recognition of deferred tax liability relating to unrealized
Investment Gains .. .........uriiinir — — (4,219)
Change in judgment relating to realizability of deferred tax assets (827) (537)  (2,778)
State INCOME taXES . .. vttt ittt ittt 81 — -
Alternative minimum tax ... ....... ..ot 68 117 9
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes.............. $ 656 $1,124  $(6,988)
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are comprised of the following:

2001 2000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred acquisition COSES . ... ..ottt $(5,506) $(5,137)
Net unrealized investment gains ............. ... .. ... (4,897)  (3,672)
Deferred and uncollected premium ......... ... ... (1,321)  (1,214)
Other . oo (99) (374)
Total deferred tax liabilities ............... ... ..., (11,823) (10,397)
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards .......... ... ... 10,515 11,265
INSUTancCe IeSEIVES . . ... ..ttt 8,587 8,946
Bad debts and other. ........ .. . 625 462
Total deferred tax assets . ............ i, 19,727 20,673
Asset valuation allowance . ......... ... (5,610)  (6,437)
Net deferred tax assets .. ..ottt e $ 2294 $ 3,839
The components of the provision (benefit) are:
2001 2000 1999
Current — Federal . ......... .. . i $68 $ 117 $ 9
Current — State . . ... 81 — —
Deferred — Federal ....... ... ... .. . . . . . . . 507 1,007 (6,997)
Total ..o $656  $1,124  $(6,988)

At December 31, 2001, the Company had regular federal net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $30,000 expiring generally between 2002 and 2010. Until the end of 1999, the Company
established a full valuation allowance against its net deferred income tax benefits as they were not
considered realizable from expected future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences. The
Company believed that it was more likely than not that the deferred income tax benefits would not be
realized through future taxable income prior to the expiration dates of net operating loss carryforwards.
However, with the acquisition of Association Casualty and several years of profitability, in the fourth
quarter of 1999 the Company determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of its net deferred
income tax benefits relating to net operating loss carryforwards scheduled to expire between 2006 and 2010
would be realized based on future taxable income. Management also can and would implement tax-
planning strategies to prevent these carryforwards from expiring.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, a valuation allowance of $5,610 and $6,437, respectively, has
been established for deferred income tax benefits relating primarily to net operating loss carryforwards
scheduled to expire between 2002 and 2003 that may not be realized. In 2001 and 2000, respectively, the
decrease of $827 and $537 in the valuation allowance is due primarily to the utilization of a portion of
these benefits that were previously reserved for. Since the Company’s ability to generate taxable income
from operations and utilize available tax-planning strategies in the near term is dependent upon various
factors, many of which are beyond management’s control, management believes that it is more likely than
not that the remaining deferred income tax benefits relating primarily to the carryforwards scheduled to
expire in 2002 and 2003 will not be realized. However, realization of the remaining deferred income tax
benefits will be assessed periodically based on the Company’s current and anticipated results of operations
and amounts could increase or decrease in the near term if estimates of future taxable income change. The
Company has formal tax-sharing agreements and files a consolidated income tax return with its
subsidiaries.
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Note 6. Credit Arrangements

The Company is a party to a five-year revolving credit facility (“the Revolving Credit Facility”) with
Wachovia Bank that provides for borrowings up to $30,000. The interest rate on the borrowings under this
facility may be fixed, at the Company’s option, for a period of one, three, six or twelve months and is
based upon the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin, 2.50% at
December 31, 2001. The margin varies based upon the Company’s leverage ratio (debt to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), as defined under the facility agreements) and
ranges from 1.75% to 3.75%. Interest on the Revolving Credit Facility is currently payable quarterly. The
Revolving Credit Facility provides for the payment of all of the outstanding principal balance at June 30,
2004 with no required principal payments prior to that time. The interest rate including the applicable
margin on this facility at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 6.35% and 9.12%, respectively.

The Company also has outstanding $25,000 of Series 1999, Variable Rate Demand Bonds (the
“Bonds”) due July 1, 2009 issued through a private placement. The Bonds, which are redeemable at the
Company’s option, pay a variable interest rate that approximates 30-day LIBOR. The Bonds are backed by
a letter of credit issued by Wachovia, which is automatically renewable on a monthly basis until thirteen
months after such time as Wachovia gives the Company notice of its option not to renew the letter of
credit. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption upon termination of the letter of credit, if an
alternative letter of credit facility is not secured. The Company expects that it would be able to replace the
letter of credit facility within the prescribed period if Wachovia should give notice of its intention not to
renew the existing facility. The cost of the letter of credit and its associated fees are 2.50% making the
effective rate on the Bonds LIBOR plus 2.50% at December 31, 2001. The interest on the Bonds is
payable monthly and the letter of credit fees are payable quarterly. The interest rate on the Bonds, along
with the related fees, at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 4.63% and 9.15%, respectively. The Bonds do
not require the repayment of any principal prior to maturity, except as provided above.

The Company is required, under both instruments, to maintain certain covenants including, among
others, ratios that relate funded debt to total capitalization and interest coverage. The Company must also
comply with limitations on capital expenditures and additional debt obligations.

Effective December 31, 2001, the Revolving Credit Facility and letter of credit were both amended by
Wachovia. The amendment establishes new covenants pertaining to ratios related to interest coverage and
eliminates funded debt to EBITDA except in determining the applicable margin. In addition, the
Company is required to consolidate the Revolving Credit Facility and the Bonds into a term loan (“Term
Loan”), effective on April 2, 2002 which will mature June 30, 2004. The Company has notified the
holders of the Bonds that they will be redeemed as of April 2, 2002. The Company must repay the
principal of the Term Loan in annual installments in the amount of $2,000 on or before December 31 of
2002 and 2003, together with one final installment at maturity in 2004.

Note 7. Derivative Financial Instruments

On March 21, 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with Wachovia to
hedge its interest rate risk on a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility.
The interest rate swap was effective on April 2, 2001 and matures on June 30, 2004. The Company has
agreed to pay a fixed rate of 5.1% and receive 3-month LIBOR until maturity. The settlement date and
the reset date will occur every 90 days following April 2, 2001 until maturity. The following table
summarizes the notional amount, fair value and carrying value of the Company’s derivative financial
instruments at December 31, 2001, as follows:

Carrying
Notional Fair Value
Amount Value (Liability)
Interest rate swap agreement . ................couiiiiiinn.... $15,000 $(532) $(532)



Note 8. Acquisitions

On July 1, 1999, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of ACIC and ARMGA for a
combined price of $33,052 with $8,483 of the purchase price paid in the form of common stock of the
Company and the remaining $24,569 paid in cash obtained from borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Facility. The acquisition of ACIC and ARMGA were accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. Accordingly, the Company has allocated the purchase price of the companies based on the fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and their results of operations are included in the
consolidated results of operations since the date of acquisition.

The following summarizes the Company’s proforma unaudited results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 1999 assuming the purchase of ACIC and ARMGA had been consummated as of
January 1, 1999.

Consolidated

__ 199

REVENUE . . o oo $136,459

NEt INCOMIE . . o\ttt e e e e e e e e e 9,656
Per common share data:

Basic earnings per common share ................ .0ttt 40

Diluted earnings per common share. . ........... ... .. i .39

This proforma financial information has been prepared for informational purposes only and is not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations had the transaction been consummated on January 1,
1999, nor is it indicative of results of operations that may be obtained in the future.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

During 2000, American Southern renewed one of its larger accounts. Although this contract was
renewed through a competitive bidding process, one of the parties bidding for this particular contract
contested the award of this business to American Southern and filed a claim to obtain the nullification of
the contract. During the fourth quarter of 2000, American Southern received an unfavorable judgment
relating to this litigation and has appealed the ruling. The contract, which accounts for approximately 10%
of annualized premium revenue, is to remain in effect pending appeal. While management at this time
cannot predict the potential outcome in this case, or quantify the actual impact of an adverse decision, it
may have a material impact on the future results of operations of the Company.

From time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and lawsuits
incidental to and in the ordinary course of their businesses. In the opinion of management, such claims
will not have a material effect on the business or financial condition of the Company.
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Operating Lease Commitments

The Company’s rental expense, including common area charges, for operating leases was $1,732,
$1,534, and $1,271 in 2001, 2000, and 1999 respectively. The Company’s future minimum lease obligations
under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending December 31,

200 $1,381
20003 L 1,310
2004 e 1,312
2000 L 1,181
2006 . . 491
Thereafter .. ... 1,789

Total . oot $7,464

Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans
Stock Options

In accordance with the Company’s 1992 Incentive Plan, the Board of Directors may grant up to
1,800,000 stock options or share awards. The Board of Directors may grant: (a) incentive stock options
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code; (b) non-qualified stock options;

(c) performance units; (d) awards of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock and other stock
unit awards; (e) deferred shares of common stock; or (f) all or any combination of the foregoing to
officers and key employees. Options granted under this plan expire five or ten years from the date of grant.
Vesting occurs at 50% upon issuance of an option, and the remaining portion is vested at 25% increments
in each of the following two years. In accordance with the Company’s 1996 Director Stock Option Plan, a
maximum of 200,000 stock options may be granted that fully vest six months after the grant date. As of
December 31, 2001, an aggregate of sixty-six employees, officers and directors held options under the two
plans.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans at December 31, 2001 and 2000, is as
follows:

2001 2000
Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg.
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding, beginning of year ... 1,024,000 $3.43 1,170,000 $3.34
Options granted ...................... 572,000 1.26 12,000 3.18
Options exercised .. ................... — — (120,000) 2.50
Options canceled or expired ............ (321,000) 2.75 (38,000) 3.63
Options outstanding, end of year ........ 1,275,000 2.63 1,024,000 343
Options exercisable ................... 991,250 3.02 992,125 3.41
Options available for future grant ....... 194,150 435,150
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The Company does not recognize compensation for stock options cost since the option price
approximates fair value on the date of grant. If compensation cost had been recognized, the Company’s
net income and earnings per share would have been as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Net income:

Asreported ... $3,597  $3,632  $10,910
Proforma. ... ... .. . 3,398 3,480 10,477
Basic earnings per common share:

Asreported ... $ .10 $ .12 $§ 48

Pro forma. . ... .. ... .. .09 A1 46
Diluted earnings per common share:

Asreported ... .. $ .10 $ .12 $ 46

Pro forma. . ... .. ... .. . .09 A1 44

The resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be representative of that to be expected in future
years.

Outstanding Exercisable
Number of Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Price Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$1.00 to $1.50 ............ 562,500 9.79 $1.25 281,250 $1.25
$1.51t0 $2.00 ............ 9,500 4.31 $1.86 8,250 $1.88
$2.51t0 $3.00 ............ 12,000 2.09 $2.82 12,000 $2.82
$3.01 t0 $3.50 ............ 37,500 <1.00 $3.22 37,500 $3.22
$3.51 t0 $4.00 ............ 637,500 1.56 $3.77 636,250 $3.77
$4.01 to $4.50 ............ 11,000 1.87 $4.27 11,000 $4.27
$4.51 t0 $5.00 ............ 5,000 1.57 $4.94 5,000 $4.94

1,275,000 991,250

The weighted average fair value of options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model and was $.95 and $1.63 for grants in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Fair value
determinations were based on expected dividend yields of zero, expected lives of 5 or 10 years, risk free
interest rates of 4.49% and 4.99%, and expected volatility of 64.99% and 52.77%, for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

401 (k) Plan

The Company initiated an employees’ savings plan under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue
Code in May 1995. The plan covers substantially all of the Company’s employees, except employees of
American Southern and Association Casualty. Under the plan, employees generally may elect to contribute
up to 16% of their compensation to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution to each
employee in an amount equal to 50% of the first 6% of such contributions. The Company’s matching
contribution is in Company stock and with a value of approximately $159, $155, and $133 in 2001, 2000,
and 1999, respectively. Association Casualty has a comparable savings plan covering substantially all of its
employees.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company has two defined benefit pension plans covering the employees of American Southern.
The Company’s general funding policy is to contribute annually the maximum amount that can be
deducted for income tax purposes.
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Net periodic pension cost for American Southern’s qualified and non-qualified defined benefit plans
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 included the following components:

2001 2000 1999
SEIVICE COSL. . v vttt ettt et et e e e $ 136 $ 119 §$ 134
Interest CoSt . ..ot 263 239 232
Expected return on plan assets. ... ..., (192)  (209) (219)
Net amortization . ........uuuiinn ittt 35 2 (27)

$ 242 §$ 151 $ 120

The following assumptions were used to measure the projected benefit obligation for the benefit plans
at December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999:

2001 2000 1999

Discount rate to determine the projected benefit obligation .............. 7.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets used to determine net
PeriodiC PENSION COSt. .. v vttt e ettt 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Projected annual salary increases ..................oiuiiiiniraininan.. 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
The following table sets forth the benefit plans’ funded status at December 31, 2001 and 2000:
2001 2000
Change in Benefit Obligation
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year........................... $ 3,792 $ 2923
SEIVICE COST. . v vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e 136 119
Interest COSt . ... ot 263 239
Actuarial 1oss (ZaIN) ... ..ot 73 614
Gross benefits paid. . ...... ... (47) (103)
Net benefit obligation at end of year................................ $ 4217 $ 3,792
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year......................... $ 2,485 $ 2,676
Employer contributions . ........... ...t 173 11
Actual return on plan @ssets .. ... ..t (428) 99)
Gross benefits paid. . ...... ... . (47) (103)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.............................. $ 2,183 $ 2,485
Funded Status of Plan
Funded status at end of year ........... ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... $(2,034) $(1,307)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss .......... ... ... ... ... 1,382 721
Unrecognized prior SErvice COSt . .. .. vvn vttt (5) 4)
Unrecognized net transition obligation .............................. 3 5
Net amount recognized at end of year ........... ... ... ... ... ...... $ (654) $ (585)
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2001 2000

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost . ... ... ... $8 — 5 —
Accrued benefit Cost . ... ... (654) (585)
Additional minimum liability ............ ... ... ... ... .. (85) (116)
Net amount recognized at end of year .............................. $ (739) $ (701)

Included in the above is one plan which is unfunded. The projected benefit obligation, accumulated
benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for this plan were $921, $701, and $0, respectively, as of
December 31, 2001 and $905, $653, and $0, respectively, as of December 31, 2000.

Note 11. Preferred Stock

The Company has 134,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock (“Series B Preferred Stock™)
outstanding, having a stated value of $100 per share. Annual dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock are
$9.00 per share and are cumulative. Dividends accrue whether or not declared by the Board of Directors.
The Series B Preferred Stock is not currently convertible, but may become convertible into shares of the
Company’s common stock under certain circumstances. In such event, the Series B Preferred Stock would
be convertible into an aggregate of approximately 3,358,000 shares of the common stock at a conversion
rate of $3.99 per share. The Series B Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the Company. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had accrued but unpaid dividends on the Series B Preferred
Stock of $7,236 and $6,030, respectively. For all periods in which the Company had an accumulated
deficit, dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock were accrued out of additional paid in capital.

The Company has 25,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock (“Series C Preferred Stock™)
outstanding, having a stated value of $100 per share. Annual dividends are $9.00 per share and are
cumulative. The Series C Preferred Stock is not currently convertible but may become convertible into
shares of the Company’s common stock under certain circumstances. In such event, the Series C Preferred
Stock would be convertible into an aggregate of approximately 627,000 shares of the common stock at a
conversion price of $3.99 per share. The Series C Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the
Company. The Company paid $225 in dividends to the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock during
2001.

Note 12. Earnings Per Common Share

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the earnings per common share calculations are
as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic Earnings Per Common Share
Net income before preferred stock dividends ...................... $ 3,597 21,198
Less preferred dividends ............ ... ... ... . i (1,431) —
Net income available to common shareholders ................ 2,166 $.10
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Effect of dilutive stock options .......... ... oo, — 160
Net income available to common shareholders plus assumed
CONVETSIONS . vttt e et e e e e e e e $ 2,166 21,358 $.10
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2000

Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic Earnings Per Common Share
Net income before preferred stock dividends ...................... $ 3,632 21,044
Less preferred dividends . ........... ... ... .. i (1,206) —
Net income available to common shareholders ................ 2,426 $.12
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Effect of dilutive stock options ........... ... cooiiiiiiiia... — 6
Net income available to common shareholders plus assumed
CONVETSIONS . o v ettt et e e e e e e e $ 2,426 21,050 $.12

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic Earnings Per Common Share
Net income before preferred stock dividends ...................... $10,910 20,030
Less preferred dividends ............ ... .. ... ... . . .. (1,206) —
Net income available to common shareholders ................ 9,704 20,030 $.48
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Effect of dilutive stock options .. .......... ... ... ..., — 122
Effect of Series B Preferred Stock . ......... ... ... ... .. ... ...... 1,206 3,358
Net income available to common shareholders plus assumed
CONVETSIONS . o vttt et e e e e e e e e $10,910 23,510 $.46

Outstanding stock options of 712,500, 804,000, and 748,000 were excluded from the earnings per
common share calculation in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, since their impact was antidilutive. The
assumed conversion of the Series B and Series C Preferred Stock was excluded from the earnings per
common share calculation for 2001 and 2000 since its impact was antidilutive.

Note 13. Statutory Reporting

The assets, liabilities and results of operations have been reported on the basis of GAAP, which varies
from statutory accounting practices (“SAP”’) prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities.
The principal differences between SAP and GAAP are that under SAP: (i) certain assets that are non-
admitted assets are eliminated from the balance sheet; (ii) acquisition costs for policies are expensed as
incurred, while they are deferred and amortized over the estimated life of the policies under GAAP;

(iii) the provision that is made for deferred income taxes is different than under GAAP; (iv) the timing of
establishing certain reserves is different than under GAAP; and (v) valuation allowances are established
against investments.
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The amount of statutory net income and surplus (shareholders’ equity) for the insurance subsidiaries
for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Life and Health, net income . ............. ... $ 2948 $ 2,515 $ 2,866
Property and Casualty, net income . ..............oiriinininennen... 3,539 2,420 3,909
Statutory net iNCOME .. ...ttt $ 6,487 $ 4935 $ 6,775
Life and Health, surplus ........... . ... i, $22,739  $23,726  $26,462
Property and Casualty, surplus ............. i, 61,922 58,206 62,145
Total SUIPIUS . ..ottt $84,661  $81,932  $88,607

Under the insurance code of the state of jurisdiction under which each insurance subsidiary operates,
dividend payments to the Company by its insurance subsidiaries are subject to certain limitations without
the prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner. The Company received dividends of $7,099 and $6,082
in 2001 and 2000, respectively, from its insurance subsidiaries. In 2002, dividend payments by the
insurance subsidiaries in excess of $9,835 would require prior approval.

In 1999, the NAIC completed a process to codify statutory accounting practices for certain insurance
enterprises (“Codification”). The Company adopted Codification on January 1, 2001. The cumulative
effect of this accounting change increased statutory surplus by approximately $1,432. The most significant
increase to statutory surplus was the recognition of deferred taxes. Codification did not impact the
Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Note 14. Related Party and Other Transactions

In the normal course of business and, in management’s opinion, at terms comparable to those
available from unrelated parties, the Company has engaged in transactions with its Chairman and his
affiliates from time to time. These transactions include leasing of office space, investing and financing. A
brief description of each of these is discussed below.

The Company leases approximately 65,489 square feet of office and covered garage space from an
affiliated company. In the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Company paid $961, $904
and $898, respectively, under the leases.

Financing for the Company has been provided through affiliates of the Company or its Chairman, in
the form of the Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock. (See note 11).

The Company made mortgage loans in 1999 to finance properties owned by its subsidiary at the time,
Leath Furniture, LLC (“Leath’), which is now owned by an affiliate of the Chairman. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, the balance of mortgage loans owed by Leath to various of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries was $3,421 and $3,538, respectively. For 2001, 2000, and 1999, interest paid by Leath on the
mortgage loans totaled $323, $333, and $352, respectively.

Certain members of management are on the Boards of Directors of Bull Run Corporation (“Bull
Run”) and Gray Communications Systems, Inc. (“Gray”). At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
Company owned 1,116,667 and 650,000 common shares of Bull Run, respectively, and 354,060 shares of
Gray’s Series A Common Stock and 6,000 shares of Gray’s Series B Common Stock. The Company also
owned 350 shares of Gray’s Series A Preferred Stock and 2,000 shares of Bull Run’s Series A Preferred
Stock at December 31, 2001. In addition, the Company held $4,010 in Gray’s 10.65% debentures at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 that were redeemed in January 2002.

In 1998, Georgia Casualty began assuming workers’ compensation premiums from Delta Fire &
Casualty Insurance Company which is controlled by certain affiliates of the Company. Premiums assumed
and commissions paid in 2001 were $1,554 and $212, respectively, and in 2000 were $2,238 and $288,
respectively.
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In 1998, American Southern formed the American Auto Insurance Agency (the “Agency”) in a joint
venture with the AAA of Carolinas motor club to market personal automobile insurance to the members
of the automobile club. American Southern holds a 50% interest in the joint venture and underwrites the
majority of the standard automobile business written by the Agency. This program, which began writing
business in 1999, had gross written premiums of approximately $6,084 and $7,200 in 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

Note 15. Segment Information

The Company’s primary insurance subsidiaries operate with relative autonomy and each company is
evaluated based on its individual performance. American Southern, Association Casualty, and Georgia
Casualty operate in the Property and Casualty insurance market, while Bankers Fidelity operates in the
Life and Health insurance market. All segments derive revenue from the collection of premiums, as well
as from investment income. Substantially all revenue other than those in the corporate and other segment

are from external sources. One account at American Southern, with the State of South Carolina,

accounted for approximately $14,054, $17,198, and $15,064 of total revenue in 2001, 2000 and 1999,

respectively.

As of December 31, 2001
Insurance premiums

Investment income, including net
realized gains . ...................

Other income

Total revenue ..............
Insurance benefits and losses incurred
Expenses deferred ..................
Amortization expense

Other expenses . . ...................
Total expenses .............

Income (loss) before income taxes . ...

Total assets

As of December 31, 2000
Insurance premiums

Investment income, including net
realized gains

Otherincome .......................

Total revenue

Insurance benefits and losses incurred. . .

Expenses deferred

Amortization expense

Other expenses .. .......c.oovvueenn...

Total expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes .. ...

Total assets . .......oovviineennnn..

American Georgia Bankers Association ~ Corporate Adjustments
Southern Casualty Fidelity Casualty & Other & Eliminations  Consolidated
$ 39,023 $ 25,579 $ 55,276 $25,711 $ — $ — $145,589
4,630 2,907 4,968 3,462 945 (887) 16,025
126 29 — 495 6,978 (5,934) 1,694
43,779 28,515 60,244 29,668 7,923 (6,821) 163,308
26,069 17,644 39,570 23,613 — — 106,896
(4,502) (4,876) (3,393) (5,404) — — (18,175)
4,651 5,122 2,478 6,181 140 — 18,572
10,765 8,519 18,219 8,203 12,877 (6,821) 51,762
36,983 26,409 56,874 32,593 13,017 (6,821) 159,055
$ 679 $ 2,106 $ 3,370 $(2,925) $ (5,094) $ — $ 4253
$110,680  $103,701  $108,604 $90,505 $140,150 $(141,621) $412,019
American Georgia Bankers Association ~ Corporate Adjustments
Southern Casualty Fidelity Casualty & Other & Eliminations  Consolidated
$ 37,172 $28,576 $ 47,639 $20,110 $ — $ — $133,497
5,235 3,445 5,948 2,626 1,103 (883) 17,474
80 27 — 554 5,774 (5,148) 1,287
42,487 32,048 53,587 23,290 6,877 (6,031) 152,258
26,185 22,192 33,452 15,799 — — 97,628
(5,242) (5,918) (3,544) (4,100) — — (18,804)
5,224 5,699 2,177 4,308 140 — 17,548
10,190 11,159 17,131 7,027 11,654 (6,031) 51,130
36,357 33,132 49,216 23,034 11,794 (6,031) 147,502
$ 6130 $(1,084) $ 4371 $ 256 $ (4917) $ — $ 4,756
$109,592  $77,237  $103,066 $80,918 $137,334 $(132,370) $375,777
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American Georgia Bankers Association ~ Corporate Adjustments

Southern Casualty Fidelity Casualty & Other & Eliminations  Consolidated
As of December 31, 1999
Insurance premiums .................. $38,166  $19,403 $ 41,527 $ 8,498 $ — $ — $107,594
Investment income, including net realized
QAINS .. 4,587 3,759 5,984 981 656 (412) 15,555
Otherincome. ....................... 173 52 — 365 5,573 (4,991) 1,172
Total revenue................ 42,926 23,214 47,511 9,844 6,229 (5,403) 124,321
Insurance benefits and losses incurred . .. 26,934 16,535 28,313 6,380 — — 78,162
Expenses deferred . ................... (5,091) (4,026) (3,437) (1,449) — — (14,003)
Amortization expense . . ............... 5,429 3,893 2,068 1,852 140 — 13,382
Other expenses ...................... 9,318 8,083 16,585 2,760 11,515 (5,403) 42,858
Total expenses .. ............. 36,590 24,485 43,529 9,543 11,655 (5,403) 120,399
Income (loss) before income taxes .. ... $ 6,336  $(1,271) $ 3,982 $ 301 $ (5,426) $ — $ 3,922
Total assets ..............ccooiunn.... $99,421  $70,207  $100,702 $73,912 $137,828 $(130,926) $351,144

Note 16. Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is necessary to
interpret market data and to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts which the Company could realize in a current market
exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

2001 2000
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, including short-term
INVESTMENTS « .« o v o v e e et e e e e e e e $ 68,846 $ 68,846 $ 31,914 $ 31,914
Bonds. ... 133,470 133,470 159,404 159,404
Common and preferred stocks ...................... 54,628 54,628 43,945 43,945
Mortgage loans . .........co it 3,421 4,126 3,538 4,040
Policy and student loans ........................... 2,713 2,713 3,098 3,098
Other invested assets . . ... ... 4,854 4,854 5,862 5,862
Liabilities:
Debt. ..o 44,000 44,000 46,500 46,500

The fair value estimates as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are based on pertinent information
available to management as of the respective dates. Although management is not aware of any factors that
would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, current estimates of fair value may differ
significantly from amounts that might ultimately be realized.

The following describes the methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating fair values:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Short-term Investments

The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of the instruments.

Bonds, Common and Preferred Stocks and Publicly Traded Other Invested Assets

The carrying amount is determined in accordance with methods prescribed by the NAIC, which do
not differ materially from nationally quoted market prices.
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Non-publicly Traded Invested Assets

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Mortgage Loans

The fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments.

Debt Payable
The fair value is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the
current rates offered for debt having the same or similar returns and remaining maturities.
Note 17. Reconciliation of Other Comprehensive Income

The Company’s comprehensive income consists of net income and unrealized gains and losses on
securities available for sale, net of applicable income taxes.

Other than net income, the other components of comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Gain on the sale of securities included in net income ................. $ 1,708 $ 1,922 $ 2,831
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net pre-tax unrealized gain (loss) arising during year............... $ 5206 $ 359 $(13,900)
Reclassification adjustment .......... ... ... ... ... ... (1,708)  (1,922) (2,831)
Net pre-tax unrealized loss recognized in other comprehensive income
(1088 + v v et eee 3,498 (1,563)  (16,731)
Fair value adjustment to interest rate swap . ....................... (532) — —
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit attributable to other
comprehensive income (losS) ....... ... .. i, (1,038) 547 (4,219)
Net unrealized gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income
(0SS + ettt e $ 1,928 $(1,016) $(20,950)

Note 18. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth a summary of the quarterly unaudited results of operations for the two
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue.......................... $40,221 $41,060 $40,540 $41,487 $36,891 $36,845 $38,658 $39,864
Income (loss):
Income (loss) before income tax
(provision) benefit ............. $ 1,599 $ 1,029 $ 1,886 $ (261) $1,726 $ 1,075 $ 1,447 $ 508
Income tax (provision) benefit. . ... (609) (389) 215 127 (574) (364) 48 (234)
Net income (loss) ......... $ 990 $ 640 $ 2,101 $ (134) $ 1,152 $ 711 $ 1,495 § 274
Per common share data:
Basic net income (loss) pershare .... $ 03 § 01 $ .08 $§ (02)$ .04 § 02 $ .06 $§ .00

Diluted net income (loss) per share .. $ 03 $§ .01 $ 08 § (02)$ .04 § .02 $ .06 $ .00
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III

With the exception of information relating to the Executive Officers of the Company, which is
provided in Part I hereof, all information required by Part IIT (Items 10, 11, 12, and 13) is incorporated
by reference to the sections entitled “Election of Directors”, “Security Ownership of Management”,
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance”, “Executive Compensation”, and “Certain Relation-
ships and Related Transactions” contained in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be delivered in
connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 7, 2002.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) List of documents filed as part of this report:

Financial Statement Schedules

I — Report of Independent Public Accountants included in report under Item 8.
IT — Condensed financial information of Registrant for the three years ended December 31,
2001
ITT — Supplementary Insurance Information for the three years ended December 31, 2001
IV — Reinsurance for the three years ended December 31, 2001
VI — Supplemental Information concerning property-casualty insurance operations for the
three years ended December 31, 2001

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted as they are not required or are not applicable, or
the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto. Columns omitted from
schedules filed have been omitted because the information is not applicable.

EXHIBITS
3.1 — Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of the registrant
3.2 — Bylaws of the registrant [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1993].
10.01 — Lease Contract between registrant and Delta Life Insurance Company dated June 1, 1992

[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1992].

10.02 — First Amendment to Lease Contract between registrant and Delta Life Insurance Company dated
June 1, 1993 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11.1 to the registrant’s Form 10Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1993].

10.03 — Second Amendment to Lease Contract between registrant and Delta Life Insurance Company
dated August 1, 1994 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11.2 to the registrant’s Form 10Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 1994].

10.04 — Lease Agreement between Georgia Casualty & Surety Company and Delta Life Insurance
Company dated September 1, 1991 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the registrant’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992].

10.05 — First Amendment to Lease Agreement between Georgia Casualty & Surety Company and Delta
Life Insurance Company dated June 1,1992 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12.1 to the
registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992].

10.06 — Management Agreement between registrant and Georgia Casualty & Surety Company dated
April 1, 1983 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1986].
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10.07* — Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors of registrant held February 25, 1992 adopting registrant’s
1992 Incentive Plan together with a copy of that plan, as adopted [incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991].

10.08 — Loan and Security Agreement dated August 26, 1991, between registrant’s three insurance

subsidiaries and Leath Furniture, Inc. [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the registrant’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992].

10.09 — First amendment to the amended and reissued mortgage note dated January 1, 1992, [incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.38.1 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1992].

10.10 — Intercreditor Agreement dated August 26, 1991, between Leath Furniture, Inc., the registrant and
the registrant’s three insurance subsidiaries [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the
registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992].

10.11 — Management Agreement between Registrant and Atlantic American Life Insurance Company and
Bankers Fidelity Life Insurance Company dated July 1, 1993 [incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.41 to the registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993].

10.12 — Tax allocation agreement dated January 28, 1994, between registrant and registrant’s subsidiaries
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1993].

10.13 — Acquisition Agreement by and among Atlantic American Corporation, Association Casualty
Insurance Company, Association Risk Management General Agency, Inc. and Harold K. Fischer,
dated as of April 21, 1999 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the registrant’s Form §-K
dated July 16, 1999].

10.14 — Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 24, 1999, by and between Atlantic American Corporation and
The Bank of New York, as Trustee [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s
Form 8-K dated July 16, 1999].

10.15 — Reimbursement and Security Agreement, dated as of June 24, 1999, between Atlantic American
Corporation and Wachovia Bank of Georgia, N.A. [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
registrant’s Form 8-K dated July 16, 1999].

10.16 — Revolving Credit Facility, dated as of July 1, 1999 between Atlantic American Corporation and
Wachovia Bank of Georgia, N.A. [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s
Form 8-K dated July 16, 1999].

10.17 — First Amendment, dated as of March 24, 2000, to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1999,
between Atlantic American Corporation and Wachovia Bank of Georgia, N.A. [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000].

10.18 — Second Amendment, dated February 9, 2001, to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1999,
between Atlantic American Corporation and Wachovia Bank of Georgia, N.A. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the registrant’s Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2000].

10.19 — Third Amendment, date February 22, 2002 to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1999, between
Atlantic American Corporation and Wachovia Bank of Georgia, N.A.

10.20 — Atlantic American Corporation 1992 Incentive Plan [ incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the
registrant’s Form S-8 filed on November 1, 1999].

10.21 — Atlantic American Corporation 1996 Director Stock Option Plan [incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 to the registrant’s Form S-8 filed on November 1, 1999].

21.1 — Subsidiaries of the registrant.
23.1 — Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP, Independent Public Accountants.

99 — Letter dated March 27, 2002 regarding representations of Arthur Andersen L.L.P.

* Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed pursuant to, Part IV,
Item 14(C) of Form 10-K and Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

(Registrant) ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION

By: /s/ HiLtoN H. HOWELL, JRr.

Hilton H. Howell, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 29, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ J. MACK ROBINSON Chairman of the Board March 29, 2002
J. Mack Robinson

/s/  HiLtoN H. HOwWELL, JR. President, Chief Executive Officer and March 29, 2002
Hilton H. Howell, Jr. Director (Principal Executive and
Financial Officer)

/s/ CASey B. HUDSON Assistant Vice President and Controller March 29, 2002
Casey B. Hudson (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ EDwARD E. ELSON Director March 29, 2002

Edward E. Elson

/s/  SAMUEL E. HUDGINS Director March 29, 2002
Samuel E. Hudgins

/s/ D. RAYMOND RIDDLE Director March 29, 2002
D. Raymond Riddle

/s/ HARRIETT J. ROBINSON Director March 29, 2002
Harriett J. Robinson

/s/ Scort G. THOMPSON Director March 29, 2002
Scott G. Thompson

/s/ MARK C. WEST Director March 29, 2002
Mark C. West
/s/ WiLLIAM H. WHALEY, M.D. Director March 29, 2002

William H. Whaley, M.D.
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Signature Title Date
/s/ Dom H. WyYANT Director March 29, 2002
Dom H. Wyant
/s/  HaroLD K. FISCHER Director March 29, 2002

Harold K. Fischer
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
(Parent Company Only)

SCHEDULE II

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and short-term investments. .. ........ ...ttt
Investment in insurance subsidiaries . .............. .ttt
Deferred income taxes, NEt . . ... ..ottt
Income taxes receivable from subsidiaries ............... ... ... ... .. ...
Other @SSCES . ot ottt

Current liabilities:
Other payables . . ...

Total current liabilities ........... ... .. i
Long-term debt .. ... ... .
Shareholders’ equity. .. .. ..ottt

December 31,

2001

2000

(In thousands)

$ 517§ —
135,026 131,080
773 2,318
2,041 1,209
2,462 2,983
$140,819  $137,590
$ 9293 § 7,850
9,293 7,850
44,000 46,500
87,526 83,240
$140,819  $137,590

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed statements.
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
(Parent Company Only)

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT — (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Revenue

Fees, rentals and interest income from subsidiaries .................. $ 5933 $ 5,148 $ 4,980
Distributed earnings from subsidiaries ................. ... ... ...... 7,099 6,382 5,706
Other .o 1,299 1,094 651
Total revenue. ... ...t 14,331 12,624 11,337
General and administrative eXpenses . ............covereirnenennen... 9,318 6,991 8,441
Interest eXpense. . . .. ..ottt 3,234 4,408 2,819
1,779 1,225 77
Income tax benefit(1) ....... ... oo 1,606 1,032 8,963
3,385 2,257 9,040
Equity in undistributed earnings of consolidated subsidiaries, net......... 212 1,375 1,870
Net INCOME . ..ottt e $ 3597 $ 3,632 $10910

(1) Under the terms of its tax-sharing agreement with its subsidiaries, income tax provisions for the
individual companies are computed on a separate company basis. Accordingly, the Company’s income
tax benefit results from the utilization of the parent company separate return loss to reduce the

consolidated taxable income of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed statements.
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION
(Parent Company Only)

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT — (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NEt INCOME . o .\ vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Realized investment gains .......... ... ...
Depreciation and amortization. . ........... ...,
Compensation expense related to stock grants.......................
Equity in undistributed earnings of consolidated subsidiaries ..........
Change in intercompany taxes. ... .........uveeuneeenneeenneennn..
Deferred income tax benefit ......... ... ... ... .. ..
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities. .. ..........................
Other, net. ...

Net cash provided by operating activities. .. ....................

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investments purchased .. ........ ... ... i
Acquisition of Association Casualty .............. ... .. ... oo,

Capital contribution to Georgia Casualty................. ... ...,
Additions to property and equipment . ........... . . i

Net cash used in investing activities. ... ..................oun..
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of bank financing ............... ... . ... . ...

Preferred stock dividends to affiliated shareholders.....................
Purchase of treasury shares .......... ... .. .. . .. i

Repayments of short-term debt.......... ... ... ... . ... .
Retirements and payments of long-term debt .........................
Issuance of preferred stocks........... ... ... . . i
Proceeds from exercise of stock options..............................

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ..............

Net increase (decrease) incash ........... ... .. ...,
Cash at beginning of year ......... ...ttt

Cash atend of year ... ... .o

Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid for interest . ... ..ot

Cash paid for income taxes .. ........uuiiinirnen e,
Issuance of stock to acquire Association Casualty .....................

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)

$3,597  $3,632  $10,910
(118)  (270) (239)
631 620 599
45 51 —
(212) (1,375)  (1,870)
(832) (1,212) (60)
507 1,007 (6,997)
(296) 318 798
(46)  (734) 186
3,276 2,037 3,327
— (47) —
(128) (94) (24,475)
— —  (2,000)
(803) (507) (446)
(931)  (648) (26,921)
— — 51,000
(225) — —
(11) (79) (779)
— — (2,400)
(2,500) (4,500) (23,600)
750 1,750 —
158 410 273
(1,828) (2,419) 24,494
517 (1,030) 900
— 1,030 130
$ 517 $§ — $ 1,030
$3,394  $4,170 $ 2,510
$ 100 $ 166 $ 131
$ — § — $8483

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed statements.
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SCHEDULE III

ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Future Policy
Benefits, Losses,
Deferred Claims and Loss Unearned
Segment Acquisition Costs Reserves Premiums

Other Policy
Claims and
Benefits Payable

(In thousands)
December 31, 2001:

Bankers Fidelity . ................... $18,554 $ 51,932 $ 3,219
American Southern.................. 2,024 46,235 18,598
Association Casualty ................ 1,799 38,489 11,590
Georgia Casualty ................... 2,304 51,214 17,618
$24,681 $187,870(1) $51,025

December 31, 2000:
Bankers Fidelity .................... $17,333 $ 49,078 $ 3,221
American Southern.................. 1,805 48,340 18,063
Association Casualty................. 1,929 31,175 11,854
Georgia Casualty. ................... 2,331 46,733 12,283
$23,398 $175,326(2) $45,421

December 31, 1999:
Bankers Fidelity .................... $15,644 $ 46,427 $ 3,046
American Southern.................. 1,401 48,751 12,235
Association Casualty................. 1,478 30,000 9,241
Georgia Casualty. ................... 1,875 41,471 9,771
$20,398 $166,649(3) $34,293

(1) Includes future policy benefits of $44,355 and losses and claims of $143,515.
(2) Includes future policy benefits of $42,106 and losses and claims of $133,220.
(3) Includes future policy benefits of $40,093 and losses and claims of $126,556.
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Segment

ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

December 31, 2001:
Bankers Fidelity ...............
American Southern .............

Association Casualty............

Georgia Casualty...............

December 31, 2000:
Bankers Fidelity . ...............
American Southern .............

Association Casualty ............

Georgia Casualty ...............

December 31, 1999:
Bankers Fidelity . ...............
American Southern .............

Benefits, Amortization
Net Claims, Losses of Deferred Other Casualty
Premium Investment  and Settlement Acquisition Operating  Premiums
Revenue Income Expenses Costs Expenses Written
(In thousands)

$ 55,276 $ 4,318 $ 39,570 $ 2,173 $15,131 $ —
39,023 4,590 26,069 4,282 6,632 39,558
25,711 2,591 23,613 5,534 3,446 30,956
25,579 2,639 17,644 4,903 3,862 25,264
— 3 — — 6,196 —
$145,589 $14,141 $106,896 $16,892 $35,267 $95,778
$ 47,639 $ 4,886 $ 33,452 $ 1,854 $13,910 $ —
37,172 5,205 26,185 4,838 5,334 43,040
20,110 2,510 15,799 3,650 3,585 22,653
28,576 2,710 22,192 5,462 5,478 31,106
— 9 — — 5,763 —
$133,497 $15,320 $ 97,628 $15,304 $34,070 $96,799
$ 41,527 $ 4,676 $ 28,313 $ 1,766 $13,450 $ —
38,166 4,614 26,934 5,068 4,588 38,530
8,498 1,045 6,380 1,431 1,732 8,524
19,403 2,095 16,535 3,682 4,268 20,870
— 4 — — 6,252 —
$107,594 $12,434 $ 78,162 $11,947 $30,290 $67,924
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ATLANTIC AMERICAN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE 1V

REINSURANCE
Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other From Other Net Amount Assumed
Amount Companies Companies Amounts to Net
(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2001:
Life insurance in force............... $305,952  $(29,915) $§ — $276,037
Premiums —
Bankers Fidelity .. .................. $ 54,591 $ (72) $ 757 $ 55,276 1.4%
American Southern ................. 24,101 (5,929) 20,851 39,023 53.4%
Association Casualty ................ 28,626 (2,915) — 25,711 —
Georgia Casualty ................... 29,746 (10,053) 5,886 25,579 23.0%
Total premiums .................... $137,064  $(18,969)  $27,494 $145,589 18.9%
Year ended December 31, 2000:
Life insurance in force . .............. $293,632  $(27,661) $ — $265,971
Premiums —
Bankers Fidelity .................... $ 46,792 $ (73) $ 920 $ 47,639 1.9%
American Southern ................. 21,167 (4,453) 20,458 37,172 55.0%
Association Casualty ................ 22,074 (1,964) — 20,110 —
Georgia Casualty ................... 29,373 (3,944) 3,147 28,576 11.0%
Total premiums. .................... $119,406  $(10,434)  $24,525 $133,497 18.4%
Year ended December 31, 1999:
Life insurance in force .. ............. $281,565  $(26,790) $ — $254,775
Premiums —
Bankers Fidelity .................... $ 41,407 $ (934) $ 1,054 $ 41,527 2.5%
American Southern ................. 17,158 (5,384) 26,392 38,166 69.2%
Association Casualty ................ 9,273 (775) — 8,498 —
Georgia Casualty ................... 23,831 (5,966) 1,538 19,403 7.9%
Total premiums. .................... $ 91,669  $(13,059) $28,984 $107,594 26.9%
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Atlantic American Corporation
Directors

J. Mack Robinson
Chairman,
Atlantic American Corporation

Hilton H. Howell, Jr.
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Atlantic American Corporation

The Honorable
Edward E. Elson
Former U.S. Ambassador
to the Kingdom of Denmark

Harold K. Fischer
Retired President,
Association Casualty Insurance Company
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D. Raymond Riddle
Retired Chairman and CEO,
National Service Industries, Inc.

Harriett J. Robinson
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Delta Life Insurance Company

Scott G. Thompson
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American Southern Insurance Company

Mark C. West
Chairman and CEO,
Genoa Companies

SHAREHOLDER

Annual Meeting

Atlantic American’s annual meeting of
shareholders will be held on Tuesday, May 7,
2002, at 9:00 a.m. in the Peachtree Insurance
Center, 4370 Peachtree Road, N.E., Atlanta,
Georgia. Holders of common stock of record at
the close of business on March 19, 2002, are
entitled to vote at the meeting, and all parties
interested in Atlantic American are invited to
attend. A notice of meeting, proxy statement
and proxy were mailed to shareholders with
this annual report.

William H. Whaley, M.D.
William H. Whaley, M.D., PC., FA.C.P

Dom H. Wyant
Retired Partner,
Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue

Atlantic American Corporation
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J. Mack Robinson
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Hilton H. Howell, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Actuarial Services

Bob J. Kitchen, Jr.
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Barbara B. Snyder
Vice President, Human Resources

Janie L. Ryan
Corporate Secretary

Independent Accountants
Arthur Andersen LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
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Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue
Atlanta, Georgia

Stock Exchange Listing
Symbol: AAME
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Quoted on the Nasdag National
Market System
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Atlantic American Corporation

Casey B. Hudson
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Bankers Fidelity Life Insurance Company
Eugene Choate
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Bob J. Kitchen, Jr.
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Scott G. Thompson
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INFORMATION

Attn: Janie L. Ryan, Corporate Secretary
P. O. Box 105480

Atlanta, Georgia 30348-5480

(800) 441-5001 or (404) 266-5532

Form 10-K and Other Information

For investors and others seeking additional
data regarding Atlantic American Corporation or
copies of the Corporation’s annual report to
the Securities and Exchange Commission
(Form 10-K), please contact Janie L. Ryan,
Corporate Secretary, (800) 441-5001 or (404)
266-5532. Please visit our web site at:
www.atlam.com.



Corporate Profile

ATLANTIC AMERICAN is an insurance holding company

whose subsidiary companies are involved in well-defined specialty markets of

life, health, property and casualty insurance industries.

N
ATLANTICAMERICAN
P\ N

4370 Peachtree Road, N.E. . Atlanta, GA 30319-3000 . Phone: 404-266-5500 . Fax: 404-266-5702

www.atlam.com
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